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Responses to requests for Clarifications (Set No. 01) 
 

No. Reference Document / Section Clause 
or Page 

Request for Clarification Responses 

1.  PART 1 – Biddings Procedures 
Section 2 – Bid Data Sheet ITB 17.4 

 
ITB 17.4 

It is stated that "Bidders shall note that the equipment and mandatory 
Spare Parts included in Schedule Nos. 2 above exclude materials used for 
civil, building, and other construction works. All such materials shall be 
included and priced under Schedule No. 2." This seems contradictory. Can 
you please clarify? 

Bid Data Sheet, ITB 17.4 is deleted (clause 17.4 of 
ITB is applicable). 
 

2.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 2 
– Bid Data Sheet 

 
 
ITB 17.5 

It is stated that "a) Schedules No. 1 & 5 & 6 & 7: Preliminary Items (i) 

Prices shall include all taxes, duties, levies and Charges payable in the 

Employer’s country up to twenty-eight (28) days prior to the deadline for 

Bid submission except for VAT which will be quoted separately." 
 

Could you please confirm if the Contractor will invoice VAT to the Client? 

VAT is included in Schedule No.9 - Grand 
Summary. 
Yes, the Contractor will invoice VAT to the Client. 

3.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 2 
– Bid Data Sheet 

 
 
ITB 17.5 

It is stated that "b) Schedules No. 2 & 3: Equipment, Materials and Tools 

and mandatory spare parts: (ii) All customs duties and VAT paid or 

payable in the Employer’s country, up to twenty-eight (28) days prior to 

the deadline for Bid submission shall be quoted separately." 
 

Could you please confirm if the Contractor will invoice VAT to the Client? 

Refer to response no. 2. 

4.  
Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 2 
– Bid Data Sheet 

ITB 17.5 It is stated that "c) Schedule No. 4: Civil Engineering and Building Works: 

(i) Prices shall include prices for transportation, insurance and other 

services incidental to the installation of the Works, all labour, Contractor’s 

equipment, construction works, materials, consumables and all matters 

and things of whatsoever nature, training, etc., where identified in the 

Bidding Documents, as necessary for the proper execution of the 

installation and other services, including all taxes, duties, levies and 

charges payable in the Employer’s country as of twenty-eight (28) days 

prior to the deadline for submission of bids to the exception of VAT which 

will be quoted separately" 

Could you please confirm whether imported material are exonerated from 
VAT for this Project? If so, could you please provide us with the official 
document indicating such exoneration? 

Refer to response no. 2.  
Equipment imported from abroad is not 
exempted from VAT. 
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or Page 
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5.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 2 

– Bid Data Sheet 

 
ITB 17.5 It is stated that "d) Schedules No. 8: Operation Service: (i) Prices shall 

include operation, maintenance & knowledge transfer, as well as all 

taxes, duties, levies and other charges payable in the Employer’s country 

as of twenty-eight (28) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids 

to the exception of VAT which will quoted separately." 
 
Could you please confirm if the Contractor will invoice VAT to the Client? 
Could you please confirm if the Contractor will pay VAT to its supplier or if 
the project beneficiates from an exoneration procedure? 

The Project is NOT VAT exempted. Refer to the 
local legislation on VAT. 

VAT is included in Schedule No.9 - Grand 
Summary and the Contractor will invoice VAT to 
the Client. 

6.  PART 1 – Biddings Procedures 
Section 2 – Bid Data Sheet ITB 37.3 

 
ITB 37.3 

It is stated that "The Employer’s evaluation of the Financial Bid shall 
exclude and not take into account: 

a) In the case of equipment, materials and mandatory spare parts 

(Schedule No. 2), all taxes and duties, applicable in the Employer’s 

country and payable on the equipment and mandatory spare parts if the 

Contract is awarded to the Bidder;" 

Can you please clarify? 

Bid Data Sheet, ITB 37.3 is deleted (clause 37.3 of 
ITB is applicable).  

Based on the ITB 37.3, the financial bid 
evaluation will be done by subtracting all taxes 
amounts on schedules 2 & 3. 

7.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures 

Section 3 - Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 

 
 
Page 10 

Can you please clarify the evaluation of Asset Replacement (AR) costs? 
In particular if the Contractor or the Engineer will perform such evaluation, 
and based on which criteria? 

Evaluation of AR is detailed in Section 3 
(Evaluation and Qualification Criteria), Sub 
Section 2.3 and 2.4.  

Costs priced in schedule 4 is added to the cost of 
replacement to be evaluated under “EM”, “EL” 
and “IT” values. See updated Evaluation and 
Qualification Criteria (Annex A). 

For the sake of clarity of calculation, if for 
example the life span expectancy of the facility is 
defined at 30 years, then the cost of EM 
equipment (replacement every 10 years) will be 3 
times the corresponding costs of schedules 2, 3 
and 4; the cost of EL equipment (replacement 
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No. Reference Document / Section Clause 
or Page 

Request for Clarification Responses 

every 15 years) will be 2 times the corresponding 
costs of schedules 2, 3 and 4, etc. 

The Client will evaluate the AR during the Bid 
Evaluation Process as per the criteria outlined in 
Sub Section 2.3 and 2.4. 

8.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures 

Section 3 - Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 

Page 10 The calculation of Operation and Maintenance Costs is calculated using the 
variable "M" which is defined by " The life span expectancy of the facility 
specified in the Table of performance requirements of Section VII, 
Employer's Requirements;". Can you please specify the life span 
expectancy of the facility, and therefore the total amount of years the 
operation and maintenance cost will taken into account for the evaluation 
of the bids? 

The life span expectancy of the facility to be 
adopted for the value "M" for calculation of OMEP 
is 30 years. 

9.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures 

Section 3 - Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 

Page 10 The calculation of Operation and Maintenance Costs will be highly 

dependent of the available water level in the Mwache Dam that will 

influence the electrical consumption of Raw Water Pumps. 

In order to allow for fair comparison of the Operation and Maintenance 
Costs between the Bidders, can you please provide us with the water levels 
to be considered in the Dam for the Operation and Maintenance Costs 
period considered for Bid Evaluations? 

The energy consumption of the RWPS calculated 
and proposed by bidders shall be based on the 
following assumptions:  

- For 20% of the time: operation level of 
the dam of 50.0 masl 

- For 50% of the time: operation Level of 
the dam of 70.0 masl 

- For 30% of the time: operational level of 
the dam of 80.0 masl 

10.  Part 1-Biddings Procedures 

Section 3-Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

Part 2-Employer's Requirements 

Page 41 
 
Page 64 

In part 1, the number of Construction Site Engineers is not defined. And in 
Part 2, it is precise, 3 Construction Site Engineer. Can you please confirm 
the number of Construction Site Engineer. 

Refer to Annex B (revised requirements for Key 
Personnel in section 33.2 of Part 2, S7.1). 
 
Section 1.4 of Part 1 – Section 3 – Evaluation and 
Qualification criteria is replaced by the following: 
The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the 
personnel for the key positions that meet the 
following requirements: refer to Section 33.2 of 
Part 2 – S7.1 – General requirements. 
 
[bullets in Section 33.2 deleted and replaced with 
Table] 
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The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed 
personnel and their experience records using 
Forms PER-1 and PER-2 included in Section IV - 
Bidding Forms and Schedules. In particular, 
diploma and evidence of fluency in English 
language shall be provided. The Employer 
reserves the right to proceed with interviews of 
proposed staff during the bid evaluation process. 
 
The Employer is willing to promote employment 
and fight social exclusion, and as such requires 
per Article 1.1.84 of the Particular Conditions that 
social inclusion measures be implemented as 
described in Section VII – Works Requirements, 
the Bidder must demonstrate that it can mobilize 
specialists in technical trainings and social 
inclusion and employment as specified in the 
table above. 
 
The Employer reserves the right to reject a bid or 
request the replacement of any of the Key 
Personnel of the successful Bidder during 
Contract negotiations if the minimum 
requirements are not achieved. 
 

11.  Part 1-Biddings Procedures 

Section 3-Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

Part 2-Employer's Requirements 

Page 41 
 
Page 63 

In part 1, 15 Key Personnel are described, while in part 2 there is 12 Key 

Personnel (without the second Construction Site Manager, cf question 

above). 

In part 2, the Technical trainings manager and the Employment and social 
inclusion expert, are missing. Can you please clarify the number and 
position of each Key Personnel. 

Refer to response no. 10. 

12.  Part 1-Biddings Procedures Page 42 Can you please clarify the kind of work experience necessary for the Refer to response no. 10 
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Request for Clarification Responses 

Section 3-Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

Part 2-Employer's Requirements 

 
Page 64 

Electromechanical expert. Part 1: "Total work experience (years) 15" 

Part 2: "At least 15 years' experience in WTP and pumping stations design 
and operation." 

13.  Part 1-Biddings Procedures 

Section 3-Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

Part 2-Employer's Requirements 

Page 42 
 
Page 64 

Can you please clarify the number of project necessary for the Structural 
engineer. 
Part 1: "3 no. WTP construction projects with one project having a capacity 
> 4,500m3/h" Part 2: "Experience as structural engineer for at least 3 WTP 
having a capacity > 4,500m3/h" 

Refer to response no. 10 

14.   
Part 1-Biddings Procedures 

Section 3-Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria 

Part 2-Employer's Requirements 

 
Page 42 
 
Page 64 

Can you please confirm the kind of work experience necessary for: ESHS 

manager/expert, Environmental and social officer, Health and safety 

officer and Architect. 

Part 2, for ESHS manager/expert, Environmental and social officer and 

Health and safety officer: "experience in construction site management" 

Part 2, for Architect: "experience in industrial architectural design" While 
for all of them in Part 1 it is described as "Total work experience". 

Refer to response no. 10 

15.   
Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 
IV – Bidding Forms 

 
Price 
Schedule 
- 
Schedule 
No.9 

We understand that in Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary of Schedule 

Prices, "15% Contingencies (Provisional) " shall be added to Sub- total 1 to 

calculate Sub-total 2, meaning that [Subtotal 2] = 1,15 x [Subtotal 1]. 
 

Can you please confirm our understanding? 

  
"10% Contingencies (Provisional) " shall be added 
to Sub- total 1 to calculate Sub-total 2, meaning 
that [Subtotal 2] = 1,10 x [Subtotal 1]. 
Refer to Annex C (revised Price Schedules). 

16.   
 
 
Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 
IV – Bidding Forms 

 
 
 
Price 
Schedule 
- 
Schedule 
No.9 

We understand that in Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary of Schedule Prices, 
the amount to be reported to the BID SUBMISSION FORM 

– BID PRICE for the Operation Service is the Total Amount of Schedule No. 
8. 

That means that the total amount of Schedule 5B ""Environmental, 

Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Operation part"" is not reported in 

the BID SUBMISSION FORM – BID PRICE, which seems incorrect. 
 

What goes to the Bid submission Form is the 
Grand Total in Schedule 9.  

Refer to Annex C (revised Price Schedules). 
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Can you please modify the Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary of Schedule 
Prices so that the amount to be reported to BID SUBMISSION FORM – BID 
PRICE for the Operation Service includes the total amount of Schedule 5B 
"Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Operation part"? 

17.   
 
Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 
IV – Bidding Forms 

 
 
Price 
Schedule 
- 
Schedule 
No.9 

In Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary of Schedule Prices, we understand 

that the GRAND TOTAL (INCL.OFALLTAXES) to be included in the Letter of 

Bid is the sum of TOTAL (Sub-total 2 + 5B + 8) + the Value Added Tax 16%. 

However, in the BID SUBMISSION FORM – BID PRICE, the amount to be 

reported is mentioned as ""excluding VAT"". This seems contradictory. 
 
Can you please clarify? 

It is not Contradicting but to be shown separately 
as below 
(i)  For the Design-Build of the Works, the lump 
sum amount of ______________ (excluding VAT);  
(ii) For the Operation Service, the amount of 
_____________ (excluding VAT);  
(iii) The total amount of VAT is: _____________. 
 

18.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 
IV – Bidding Forms 

Price 
Schedule 
- 
Schedule 
No.2 

In Schedule No. 2: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts 
Supplied from Abroad, can you please confirm that the amount to be 
reported to Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary of Schedule Prices is the Total 
Price (Excl. VAT) which includes Custom Duties & Levies  

This is correct. 

The amount in Schedule No.2 to be carried 
forward to Schedule No. 9 (Grand Summary of 
Schedule Prices) is exclusive of VAT but inclusive 
of Custom Duties & Levies 

19.   
Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 
IV – Bidding Forms Price Schedules 

 "Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police station and 

clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) " is included in our scope of 

works. 

Can you please provide us with the daily production to be considered? 
What is the battery limit to be considered (potable water production / 
potable water transfer pipeline / potable water distribution pipelines? 
service connections, etc?) 

The scope of the potable water system for the 
base camp, police station and clinic, to be quoted 
as per item 1.4.3 of Schedule 2, is described in the 
revised Part 2, section 7.2, 3.15.3.  

See Annex D – Revised Part 2, section 7.2, 3.15.3 

20.  Part 1- Bidding procedures Section IV 
– Bidding Forms SCHEDULE OF 
GUARANTEES 

 
Page 23 

For "4 Guarantees concerning noise levels", it is not possible at bid stage 

to get enough information to be able to run a full and reliable noise 

study. As a consequence, we can only guaranty maximum noise level. 

Is it possible to modify the Schedule of Guarantee by removing the 
guaranty values per octave band in equipment room and site boundaries 
at proposal stage? 

The table of guaranteed values per octave band 
of chapter 4 – “Guarantee concerning noise 
levels” of the Schedule of performance 
Guarantees in section IV – Bidding Forms, is 
deleted.  
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However, the guaranteed maximum noise levels 
at the edge of the property (chapter 4.2) are 
maintained and shall comply with section 7.2, 
chapter 2.1.4 of Part 2 – Employer’s 
Requirements. Bidders can perform a specific 
noise study at bid stage, considering the 
requirements of the Bidding Documents. In the 
absence of measures of the initial noise level at 
the edge of the property, bidders can adopt the 
tentative following assumptions:  

- During the day: L50 = 40 dB(A) 
- During the night: L50 = 30 dB(A) 

21.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures 

Section IV – Bidding Forms 

Form EXP–EIWP: Experience with 
Employment-Intensive Work Programs 
(EIWP) & Form EXP – TRAIN: 
Technical Training Program 
Experience 

 
 
 
Pages 38 
to 41 

 
"Form EXP–EIWP: Experience with Employment-Intensive Work Programs 

(EIWP)" and "Form EXP – TRAIN: Technical Training Program Experience" 

can be found in the Bidding Form although they are neither listed in the 

Section IV - Bidding Forms Table of Form, nor in the content of the 

Technical Proposal page 21. 

Does the Contractor have to complete and include these forms in its 
proposal? If yes, can you please provide us with the associated Evaluation 
and Qualification Criteria? 

The Bidder must demonstrate that it can mobilize 
specialists in technical trainings and social 
inclusion and employment as specified the 
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Section 1.4 
by using Forms PER-1 and PER-2. Filling of Form 
EXP–EIWP and Form EXP – TRAIN is not 
mandatory. 

22.  Site Visit  Can you please confirm that the existing bridge over the railway on the access 
road to the WTP Site has the capacity to bear important truck traffic during 
design & build and operation services periods? 
 

Ascertaining the bridge load bearing capacity and 
getting approval of using the bridge by the 
relevant road authorities for a given load and 
traffic will be the Contractor’s responsibility.  
  

23.  Permits/Statutory   Approvals/Project 
Licenses 
 

 Can you please provide us with the Permits Responsibility Matrix between 
Employer and Contractor that shall be applicable for the project? 
 

The Contractor shall obtain all permits, licenses 
and approvals, as required by the Kenyan Laws in 
relation to the execution and completion of the 
Works, remedying of any defects and operation 
service. 
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24.  Interfacing with Dam Contractor  Can you please provide us with an Interfacing Plan between the Contractor 
and the Dam Contractor to ease the understanding of the full scope of works? 
 

There is currently no such interfacing plan.  
Traffic arrangements within the Dam area but 
outside the WTP site shall be made in close liaison 
with the Dam Contractor. Any associated costs of 
liaison with the Dam Contractor, especially 
relating to heavy traffic and associated mitigation 
of damage to the road infrastructure constructed 
by the Dam Contractor shall be deemed to be 
covered in the Contractor’s financial proposal. 

25.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section IV 
- Bidding Forms Price Schedules - FIRM 
PART 
 

Price 
Schedule 
No.4 
 

Item 1.3.14 of Price Schedule is "WTP Access Road connecting WTP to Dam 
Access Road (refer to Drawings for Information Drg. No. ART-8773361-PD-
DWG-401". There is no legend on this drawing showing explicitly the scope of 
works for that particular item. Can you please specify the scope of works for 
the WTP Access Road? Are the section of roads in gray named "ACCESS ROAD 
TO TREATMENT PLANT" and "ACCESS ROAD TO PUMPING STATION" included 
in the scope of works? 

The access road detailed in item 1.3.14 of the Price 
Schedules is labelled “Access Road to Treatment 
Plant” in Drg. No. ART-8773361-PD-DWG-401. All 
other access roads outside the WTP will be 
constructed by the Dam Contractor, included the 
access road to the pumping station (refer to Part 2 
– Employer’s Requirements). 

26.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements  Could you please provide us with native files of the topography and any other 
native drawings files useful for the preparation of the design (P&ID, 3D Model, 
2D if any....)? 
 

Please see Annex E - Mwache WTP – Topo in 
native format (dwg) 
 

The native topographical survey drawing is 
provided for information only. Detailed 
topographical survey / verification is the 
Contractor’s responsibility and is covered in the 
Price Schedule 1, item 1.7. 

27.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements  Can you please provide us with the precise Site boundaries (coordinates) to 
be considered for the Raw Water Pumping Station, Raw Water Pumping 
Mains and Water Treatment Plant as well as any other area available for the 
erection of temporary facilities under native format? 
 

Could you please confirm if these sites have been acquired by the Client? 

Coordinates of boundaries of the WTP site and 
the RWPS site are given in Annex F. 
 
Yes, the Client has acquired all sites for the 
permanent works. 

28.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements  Is there an applicable List of Approved Manufacturers or Vendors for 
equipment to be provided? If yes, can you please provide it? 

None. 
The Contractor is to provide all Project materials 
and equipment from reputable manufacturers 
that conform to the Technical Specifications.  
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Equipment makes and types installed in similar 
existing installations with over 10 years proven 
durability will be an advantage. 

29.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
2.5. TRAFFIC ARRANGEMENTS 
 

Page 16 "The Dam Contractor is responsible for the construction works of the access 
roads outside the WTP site. " 
 
"Traffic arrangements within the Dam area but outside the WTP site shall be 
made in close liaison with the Dam Contractor. Any associated costs of liaison 
with the Dam Contractor, especially relating to heavy traffic and associated 
mitigation of damage to the road infrastructure constructed by the Dam 
Contractor shall be deemed to be covered in the Contractor’s proposal. " 
 
We understand that the Contractor's shall be responsible for "costs of liaison 
with the Dam Contractor, especially relating to heavy traffic and associated 
mitigation of damage to the road infrastructure" only for its own use of the 
access roads and that the Contractor will not be responsible for mitigation of 
damages to access roads outside the RWPS, RWPM and WTP sites cause by 
others. Can you please confirm? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is correct. 

30.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 

Page 21 It is stated that "Implementation Works to be carried out by the Contractor 
include but are not limited to the following: 
Adopting mitigating measures provided in the ESIA Reports already agreed 
with the AFD. In addition, if need be, these documents (ESIA, IEE, EMP, DDR) 
should be updated and/or preparation of renewal plan." 
Could you please provide us with these documents, namely ESIA, IEE, EMP 
and DDR?   

The ESIA Report is provided as Annex G. 

31.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
6.3. DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
EXCAVATED MATERIALS 
 

Page 30 It is stated that "Surplus excavated material and debris arising from the Works 
shall be: 
“dumped on agreed disposal sites at the expenses of the Contractor as agreed 
with the local authorities" 
Could you please advise us on the agreed disposal landfill sites with their 
locations, names and cost for disposal per m3? 
 

The Bidder is responsible for identification of 
landfill sites and the associated costs for dumping 
the surplus excavated materials. 
 
It may be possible for the WTP Contractor to liaise 
with the Dam Contractor and use existing dump 
sites in close proximity to the WTP Site. 
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32.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
8.5. SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL 
 

Page 34 It is stated that "The Contractor shall submit in three (3) hard copies and a 
digital copy to the Engineer, for review, information or approval, all 
documents and drawings which he prepares under this Clause (except for "As-
Built"). The Engineer will analyse all such designs and drawings, will appraise 
them as to whether they are reasonable and consistent with the Construction 
Drawings, will approve if requested and will order changes when deemed 
necessary. " 

Would it be possible to use ecopy only with an adequate EDMS and 3d model 
review platform, at least until the document is approved, to avoid 
unnecessary numerous hard copy prints? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hard copies must be submitted for review and 
approval. Other ecopy submission options may be 
considered during the Project implementation 
stage. 

33.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
21.2. HAUL AND ACCESS ROADS 
 

Page 50 It is stated that "The Contractor shall maintain the existing roads to different 
site works, as are necessary for the conduct of the work under the contract." 
Can you please detail the scope of works of the Contractor regarding the 
maintenance of existing roads as they will be used by others? And which of 
the roads are concerned? 
 
 

Refer to query and response No. 29 

34.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
21.3. ELECTRICITY AND POWER 
SUPPLIES 
 

Page 50 It is stated that "The Contractor shall also install on his own expenses all the 
equipment necessary for the permanent power supply of the plant and raw 
water pumping station in accordance with the Specifications and approved 
drawings. 

F. The Contractor shall provide at the date of the completion, all approvals 
and clearance for connection of the permanent works as issued by the Kenya 
Power and Lighting Company (KPLC). 

Could you please confirm if KPLC has confirmed the feasibility of 5 or 6MVA 
power line capacity to the RWPS? What is the route foreseen? 
 

Under the Dam Contract, Kenya Power has 
constructed 33kV overhead power line approx. 
11Km from Rabai and terminates at a KPLC sub-
station / metering switchyard which is within 
1.0Km from the Raw Water Pumping Station. The 
33kV overhead power line has been constructed 
along the proposed Dam access road passing 
adjacent to the proposed site for the Water 
Treatment Plant (see Annex H). 

Kenya power has confirmed that the 33kV Line is 
adequate to meet the power requirements for the 
RWPS and the WTP.  
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All the components within the new Sub-station 
(implemented under the Dam Contract), which 
includes Current and Voltage Transformers, 
Protection Switches, 33kV Meter are specifically 
designed for the temporary loads of the Dam 
Contractor.   

In this WTP Contract, the WTP Contractor is 
required to make application to Kenya Power for a 
power connection for both the WTP and the RWPS.  
The envisaged power connection works to be done 
by the Kenya Power (under the WTP Contract) for 
the RWPS power connection includes extension of 
the 33kV powerline from the newly built Dam Sub-
station to the RWPS (approx. 1Km), an end-of-the-
line H structure, Switchroom including the KPLC  
metering cabinet. The power connection for the 
WTP may either be a line from the Dam sub-
station or a tap-off from the main 33kV line from 
Rabai extending up to the Switchroom and KPLC 
metering cabinet. The final decision on this issue 
will be made by Kenya Power. 

In summary, Kenya Power will extend the 33kV 
power lines to both the RWPS and WTP including 
installing the end-of the line H structure and the 
indoor metering cabinets (Contractor to provide 
the KPLC Metering Rooms). The work to be carried 
out by Kenya Power (excludes construction of KPLC 
metering rooms) will be covered under the 
Provisional Sum (item 10.11 of schedule no.10). 
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All other associated works after the KPLC 
metering, related to the power supply for the 
RWPS and WTP including but not limited to the 
33/3.3 kV & 3.3/0.433 kV Transformers, 
Switchgears, Switchboards, civil works for the 
Switchroom / KPLC Metering Room will be carried 
out by the WTP Contractor as per the Contractor’s 
approved design and their cost will be covered in 
the respective item in the Price Schedule. 

35.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
21.6. WATER SUPPLY 
 

Page 52 It is stated that "The site for the WTP and raw water pumping station has no 
existing water supply facilities. 
The Contractor shall make all provisions for the supply of water required for 
the execution of the Works as well as adequate quantities of potable water 
for all personnel (...) 
The Contractor shall supply water to sub-contractors or other contractors for 
all their requirements. " 
Could you please indicate what has been foreseen so far for water supply? 
How far is the closest water source and what is the associated capacity? 
It is expected that the production of concrete and its curing would require 
several hundreds of m3 per day. Please advise on the availability of water at 
the site. 

The Client has clearly indicated that the site for the 
WTP and raw water pumping station has no 
existing water supply facilities.  
 
It is the Contractor’s responsibility to make all 
provisions for the supply of water required for the 
execution of the Works as well as adequate 
quantities of potable water for all personnel. 
 
The bidders should carry out their own 
investigation on the closest water sources and 
their adequacy, and define themselves if a 
temporary water retaining structure is required 
for implementation of the works. 

36.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.1 – General Requirements 
24. STORAGE AND USE OF EXPLOSIVES 
 

Page 53 It is stated that "Except if specifically approved by the Engineer in writing, the 
Contractor will not use explosives." 
Can you please confirm if explosives can be used upon approval of the 
relevant authorities and Engineer, for excavation purposes of rock? 
 

The use of explosives is strictly prohibited 
because the WTP is in close proximity to the Dam 
unless specifically approved by the Engineer in 
writing and after a deep geotechnical analysis 
assessing the effects on the dam and other 
nearby infrastructures. 

37.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
1.2. LIMITS OF SERVICES 

Page 7 It is stated that "The limits of the works covered by this contract are as follows: 
[…] 

Refer to response No. 19. 
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 Water supply facilities (includes a pumping system and an elevated reinforced 
concrete tank) for the base camp, clinic, police station (implemented under 
the Dam Contract). [...]" 
Can you please provide us with some details about the water supply facilities 
to be provided: detailed scope of works with battery limits, required capacity 
and elevation of the reinforced concrete tank, etc.? 

38.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
1.2. LIMITS OF SERVICES 
 

Page 7 It is stated that "The limits of the works covered by this contract are as follows: 
"Upstream limit: connection to the new incoming raw water gravity main 
from Mwache Dam just outside the RWPS. The diameter of the raw water 
gravity main has not been finalised. Tentatively, the diameter will be 1600 – 
2000mm. The Contractor will be required to liaise with the Dam Contractor 
to obtain the final pipe diameter and other design parameters which will be 
essential for design of the RWPS. As a minimum, the WTP Contractor is 
expected to include Flow Measurement Equipment and Flow Regulation 
Valves at the connection to the incoming raw water gravity main within the 
scope of this Contract." 
 
Flow Regulation Valves located at the upstream of RWPS (raw water gravity 
main) might damage the system. Can you please confirm that the supply and 
installation of Flow Regulation Valves at the upstream of RWPS (raw water 
gravity main) is not mandatory and will depend on Contractor's design? 

 
Under the Dam Contract, no provisions have been 
made for raw water flow regulation. In the WTP 
Contractor’s design, it is mandatory that the 
aspect of raw water flow regulation be adequately 
addressed.  
 
Flow Regulation Valves at the upstream of RWPS 
is not mandatory and will depend on Contractor's 
design. However, a sectional valve (to isolate the 
raw water pipe from the pumping station) and 
Flow Meter on the raw water gravity main is a 
mandatory requirement. 

39.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
1.5. DESTINATION OF BY-PRODUCTS 
 

Page 9 It is stated that "The Dam Contractor will implement the following 
works/components: 
(ii) An access road from the WTP to the pumping station (bitumen surfacing, 
8m wide) on completion of the Dam. In the interim, a temporary all-weather 
road shall be constructed." 
Could you please kindly confirm whether the temporary all weather road shall 
be constructed by the Dam Contractor? 

 
A temporary all weather access road from the 
WTP to RWPS has already been made by the Dam 
Contractor and will be available for use by the 
WTP Contractor at Commencement Date. 

40.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
3.3.2. Footprint for the RWPS 

Page 22 Can you please confirm that the temporary all weather access road from the 
WTP to the pumping station will be ready at the Commencement Date, or 
how many months after the CD? 

Refer to response No. 39. 
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41.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
3.3.2. Footprint for the RWPS 
 

Page 22 It is stated that:  
"The Dam Contractor will implement the following works/components: 
(ii) Earthworks for the proposed pumping station footprint to a general 
reduced level of 41m amsl. (...)" 
 
Can you please confirm that the platform built by the Dam Contractor for the 
proposed pumping station footprint to a general reduced level of 41m amsl 
will be ready at the Commencement Date? 
Can you please provide us with the dimensions of the platform for the RWPS? 
 

 
The footprint for the RWPS at a general reduced 
level of 42m amsl will be ready and available to 
the WTP Contractor at Commencement Date. 
 
Dimensions and coordinates of the platform are 
given in response to query no. 27. 

42.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
3.3.2. Footprint for the RWPS 
 

Page 22 It is stated that: 
"The Dam Contractor will implement the following works/components: (...) 
(i) An access road from the WTP to the pumping station (bitumen surfacing, 

8m wide) on completion of the Dam. In the interim, a temporary all-
weather road shall be constructed (...)" 

 
Can you please confirm that the temporary all weather access road from the 
WTP to the pumping station will be ready at the Commencement Date? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Please refer to query and response no. 39. 

43.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Performances 
Specifications 
3.3.2. Footprint for the RWPS 
 

Page 22 It is stated that: 
"The Dam Contractor will implement the following works/components: (...) 
(i) Raw water gravity main from the Dam draw-off tower to the RWPS 

(DN1800, PN10)." 
The raw water gravity main from the Dam to the RWPS is shown on section 
"3.3.3.2. Raw Water Abstraction from Mwache Dam " with a diameter of 
DN1600.  
 
Can you please clarify the diameter to be considered? Can you please confirm 
if the pipes shall be a twin pipe arrangement or single pipe arrangement? 
 

 
The raw water gravity main from the Dam to the 
RWPS is a ferrous DN1800 single pipe 
arrangement.  The Raw Water Gravity Main from 
the Dam laid by the Dam Contractor will terminate 
within the Pumping Station Boundary to which the 
WTP Contractor will connect. Refer to Annex I. 

44.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
 

Page 23 Could you provide us the simulation of the Dam reservoir over 54 years if 
available in the Update of the Dam Design Report (NK, MIBP, AF, 2017)? 

The simulation of the Mwache Dam reservoir over 
54 years is presented in Figures 2 & 3 on Page 24 
(Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
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Section 7.2 – Design Requirements and 
Performances Specifications). 
 

45.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.3.3.3. Design Data - (v) Type of 
Pumps and Standby Requirement 
& 
3.1.12. Pumping stations 
 

Page 20 
& 26 

It is stated that "Standby pumping units to be provided shall be in compliance 
with the provisions of the local design manual for water supply services 
(Ministry of Water and Irrigation Practice for Water Supply Services in Kenya 
October 2005).". In this "local design manual for water supply services", at 
Chapter A148 - 10.8 STANDBY UNITS - 10.8.1 Raw Water and Clear Water 
Pumps it is stated that "Pumping stations should have one stand-by pump 
with the same capacity as the pumps which are normally in operation. Hence 
if the station is designed for one pump, then two similar pumps should be 
installed. If the station is designed for two pumps running in parallel, then 
three similar pumps should be installed etc.". 
In 3.1.12. Pumping stations, it is stated that "Unless otherwise specified and 
whatever the number of pumps, 50% stand-by pump shall be enable on the 
spot and shall start up automatically of another pump breaks down (...)". 
Those two requirements seem contradictory. Can you please specify the 
required number of stand-by pumps for the Raw Water Pumping Stations? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A 50% Stand-By must be provided for all pumps in 
both the RWPS and WTP (and for both the firm 
part and the conditional part). 

46.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.5. WATER TREATMENT LINE 
 

Page 32 In Figure 5: Suggested waterline for Mwache WTP, the flow of the WTP is 
noted as "Water Treatment Plant – Waterline Bidding part: 4,500m3/hr 
Conditional part: Additional 4,500m3/hr Final Treatment capacity: 8,900 
m3/hr" 
Whereas in other parts of the Bidding Document, the nominal capacity of the 
WTP is 4450m3/h for both Firm and Conditional Parts. Can you please confirm 
the 4450m3/h nominal capacity for each Part? 
 

Regarding minimum and maximum daily 
capacity, bidders shall refer to Part 2, Section 7.2, 
Chapter 1.3.2.  
 
Figure 5 was provided for information only, to 
avoid misunderstanding, figure 5 is deleted.  
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47.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.5.5.1. Filters characteristics 
 

Page 37 It is stated that: "The wash water supply tank shall be part of the Treated 
Water Tank and shall have the capacity for at least 2 backwashes" whereas in 
"Figure 5: Suggested waterline for Mwache WTP" the wash water is supplied 
from the Filtered Water Reservoir which also appears on the drawings and in 
chapter 3.1.5. Ease and optimization of operation: "Number of filtered water 
tanks: Minimum 2 ". 
Can you please clarify? 

The Contractor shall provide a wash water supply 
tank to be used for the filters backwash and it shall 
have the capacity of minimum 2 backwashes.  
 
 

48.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
 

Page 38 "The hypochlorite solution shall be produced on the site by electro 
chlorination or calcium hypochlorite solution. The residual chlorine can also 
be provided by use of gaseous chlorine. The Contractor shall provide for all 
three options for residual chlorine. " 
 
What is the typical hypochlorite solution production in Kenya? 
 
 
Can you please confirm that we have only to detail and price in our proposal 
only one solution, the one used in Kenya? 
 

Refer to Annex J - Revised Part 2, section 7.2, 
3.5.6.2 

49.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.11. ELECTRICITY SUPPLY 
 

Page 52 It is stated that: "The electric sub-station will be fed by a MV line (33kV) 
constructed by Kenya Power from the existing network. The connection line 
from the HV/MV electric sub-station to the plant is included in this contract 
as a provisional sum. It will be carried out by a Kenya Power approved 
contractor and under Kenya Power’s supervision, as a part of this contract". 
 
We understand that the full cost of the construction of the MV line (33kV) 
constructed by Kenya Power from the existing network to feed the electric 
sub-station (meaning between the existing networks and the sub-station, at 
the upstream of the substation) is neither included in the Contractor's price 
nor in the Provisional Sums. Can you please confirm our understanding? 

Refer to response No. 34. 
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Similarly, we understand that the full cost of the construction of the 
connection line from the HV/MV electric sub-station to the plant (meaning 
between the sub-station and the WTP, at the downstream of the substation) 
is included in the Provisional Sums. Can you please confirm our 
understanding? 

50.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.11. ELECTRICITY SUPPLY 
 

Page 52 It is stated that: "The Contractor shall also be responsible for the following: 
(…) The extension of the existing medium voltage line in the vicinity to the 
proposed transformer station. " 
 
This seems in contradiction with the previous chapter stating that "The 
electric sub-station will be fed by a MV line (33kV) constructed by Kenya 
Power from the existing network. The connection line from the HV/MV 
electric sub-station to the plant is included in this contract as a provisional 
sum. It will be carried out by a Kenya Power approved contractor and under 
Kenya Power’s supervision, as a part of this contract." 
Can you please clarify? 
 

Refer to response No. 34. 
 
 

51.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.11. ELECTRICITY SUPPLY 
 

Page 52 It is stated that: "The supply of the site will be made by the creation of an 
electric sub-station MV/LV (33Kv/3.3kV/400V). The power requirement of the 
sub-station shall be determined by the Contractor according to the 
installations and the equipment to be installed by him." 
Can you please clarify if the supply of the equipment for the electric sub-
station MV/LV (33Kv/3.3kV/400V) is included in the Contractor's Scope of 
Works? 
 

Refer to response No. 34. 
 
 

52.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.11. ELECTRICITY SUPPLY 
 

Page 54 It is stated that: "The electrical power distribution shall be made through 
three distributed divisional electric cupboards installed in the electrical room 
of the followings buildings: 
-Pre-treatment building. 
-Blower Aeration building. 
-Biological Treatment building."  
Can you please clarify? 

The question is not clear. 

In order to optimize the power supply equipment 
and lengths and sections of electrical cables, it is 
generally preferable to have a distributed 
electrical distribution architecture from the 
transformer substation, with an electrical 
distribution cabinet integrated into a building 
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(electrical room) for each of the major process 
phases: pre-treatment, aeration and biological 
treatment.  

Bidders are however free to propose a different 
architecture provided they meet the electrical 
standards and the Employer’s Requirements.  

53.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.13. CIVIL WORKS 
 

Page 56 It is stated that: "All buildings within the WTP and the Raw Water Pumping 
Station shall be double volume buildings." Can you please clarify? 

The “double volume building” means that all 
electromechanical buildings within the WTP and 
the Raw Water Pumping Station shall have a 
minimum head room of 7.0 m, to allow for 
adequate circulation of air. All other buildings 
must have a clear headroom of 3.2 m minimum. 

In addition, a specific ventilation study shall be 
performed for each room having electrical motors, 
in order to properly assess the adequate volume of 
the building. 

54.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 
Section 7.2 – Design Requirements 
and Performances Specifications 
3.15.3. Potable water system (other 
facilities within the Dam area) 
 

Page 61 "Under this Contract, the Contractor shall design and implement a pumping 
system from the clear water tank to an elevated 100m3 reinforced concrete 
tank. The tank will be located with the Dam operation area of distance not 
exceeding 3 Km. The height of the elevated reinforced concrete tank is 
approximately 15m. However, final designs for these works will be finalised 
by the Dam Contractor in close liaison with the Dam Contractor." 
There is a repetition of "Dam contractor" which cause the clause to be barely 
comprehensible. Can you please clarify? 

Refer to Response No. 19. 
 
Typo corrected in the last sentence, please read: 
“final designs for these works will be finalized by 
the WTP Contractor in close liaison with the Dam 
Contractor.” 
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1.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 1 – 

Instructions to bidders 17 Bid Prices and 

Discounts 

Pages 12 & 
13 / 
103 

Could you please confirm whether the Client will pay 

the entire VAT to the Contractor or if the Client is a 

VAT Withholding agent? 

The Client is a VAT Withholding agent for KRA. 
Based on the present legislation, the 
Withholding Agent retains 2% and pays 14% to 
the Contractor. 
Regarding VAT refer to responses #2, 4, 5, 17 and 
18 of set-001 above. 

2.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 1 – 

Instructions to bidders 17 Bid Prices and 

Discounts 

Pages 12 & 
13 / 
103 

Could you please confirm whether the contract is 
subject to stamp duties and, if so, the rate applicable? 

The Project is NOT tax exempted. Bidders are 
required to familiarize themselves with local 
legislation pertaining to all applicable taxes. 

3.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES – Section IV 
Bidding Forms - SCHEDULE 

OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES - 7 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 
 

Page 74/103 Some KPIs seem related to a wastewater 

treatment plant project whereas the DBO 

Mwache WTP project in a potable water 

treatment plant. For example: 

- KPI No. 5 related to Odor Treatment 

- KPI No. 6 related to Treated effluent quality 
("The effluent quality of treated 
wastewater at the outlet of the plant (...)) 

- KPI No. 8 related to Dried sludge quality 

- KPI No. 10 related to Air quality after 
treatment 

- KPI No. 11 related to Washed grit quality 
(dryness and organic matter) 

We understand that those KPIs are not applicable 
and shall not be considered: can you please confirm 
our understanding? 

Part 1, Section IV (Bidding Forms) – Sub section 
7 (Key Performance Indicators) is not applicable. 
These KPIs were redundant with other chapters 
of schedule of performance guarantees or not 
applicable to the project. . 

4.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 
Section IV Bidding Forms – Price Schedules for 
Conditional Part - 

Schedule No. 6: Security Cost Schedule 
 

Prices 
"Security 
2" to 
"Security 5 

The prices are noted as "Included in Firm Part" 
although they shall be applicable during the 
execution of the Conditional. Then, we understand 
that the mention "Included in Firm Part" is not 
applicable and that the Contractor shall quoted 
those prices: can you please confirm our 
understanding? 

 

Security Schedule No. 6, Item 2 to 5 for the 
conditional part is applicable and should be 
priced in the Price Schedules. 
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5.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 
Section IV Bidding Forms – Price Schedules for 
Firm Part and 

Conditional Part - Schedule No. 8: Security 
Cost Schedule 

 
 

Schedule 8 Prices Schedules for Operation Service of Firm Part 

and Conditional Part both include items to be paid 

for a 24 months duration. However, considering the 

maximum delay of notification of the Conditional 

Part of 365 days, some items will be redundant 

between the Firm Part and Conditional Part (for 

example: the Plant Manager). Can you please 

describe the way the Contractor shall fill the Price 

Schedule to take into account this redundancy? 

 
Please refer to the revised schedule of prices 
(firm and conditional parts). 

6.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 
Section IV Bidding Forms – Price Schedules for 
Firm Part and 

Conditional Part - Schedule No. 8: Operation 
Service 

Schedule 8 Can you please provide us with the Water Level to be 
considered in the Dam for the Operation Service 
pricing? 

Please refer to Answer to Clarifications Set n°01, 
No 9 

7.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 
Section IV Bidding Forms – Price Schedules for 
Firm Part and 

Conditional Part - Schedule No. 8: Operation 
Service 

Schedule 8 Can you please provide us with the Raw Water 
Turbidity to be considered for the Operation Service 
pricing? 

The water quality to be adopted for Operation 
Service pricing (Schedule no. 8) is provided in 
Part 2, Section 7.2 – Sub section 1.3.3, Table 1 
(page 8 & 9). 
As a range is provided for Raw Water Turbidity, 
in the table, bidders shall consider the average 
value of 20 NTU for calculation of quantities of 
chemicals, other consumables and electricity for 
the Operation Service pricing.   

8.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 
Section IV Bidding Forms – Price Schedules for 
Firm Part and 

Conditional Part - Schedule No. 8: Operation 
Service 

 

 

Schedule 8 We understand that for the pricing of the Operation 
Service, the Contractor shall consider the Water 
Level in the Dam and the Raw Water turbidity to be 
provided as answers to the above questions and that 
during the Operation Service Period, the Contractor 
will be paid from the effective remeasured quantities 
for electrical consumption, chemicals consumption, 
etc. Is our understanding correct? 

This is correct. 
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9.  PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES - 

Section IV Bidding Forms - WORK 

PROGRAMME, ORGANIZATION CHART AND 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

- FOR DESIGN-BUILD 

 

Page 77/103 It is stated that "The bidder shall prepare this section 

for the Firm Part only and for the Firm Part and the 

Conditional Part together." For the preparation of 

the Work Programme for the Firm Part and the 

Conditional Part together, we need the delay to be 

considered between the beginning of the Firm Part 

and the notification of Conditional Part: can you 

please provide us with the delay to be considered? 

The Work Programme, for the firm part and 
conditional part together, should consider a 
maximum delay of 365 days i.e the 
commencement date for the conditional part will 
be maximum 365 days after the commencement 
date for the firm part. 

10.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements - Section 

7.1 – General Requirements - 

10. STANDARDS, CODES AND 

REGULATIONS 

Pages 38 and 
39/848 

Kenyan Standards are not mentioned in this 

chapter: are they applicable for that project? If yes, 

do they prevail over the Standards listed in this 

chapter? 

 

The list of applicable standards listed in Part 2, 
Section 7.1, item 10.1 is not exhaustive. The 
Contractor has an option to use standards 
provided or approved equivalent. Refer to 
provisions of S7.1, item 10.4 - Standards Other 
Than Those Specified. 

11.  Part 3 – Conditions of Contract - Section 10 – 

Contract Forms - Appendix 3 – Performance 

damages 

 

Pages 64 

and 65/69 

 

Performance damages for Failure to pass Tests Prior 

to Contract Completion are calculated from, among 

others, "RLE = Residual Life Expectancy of the 

facility, being the difference in between the life span 

expectancy of the facility, as defined in the Schedule 

of Performance Guarantees, and the Operation 

Service Period". However, in the Schedule of 

Performance Guarantees, there is no life span 

expectancy of the facility. Can you please specify the 

Life Span Expectancy? 

Please refer to Answer to Clarifications Set n°01, 
No 8. 

12.  PART 2 – EMPLOYER’S REQUIREMENTS - 

Section 7.2 – 

Performances Specifications - 1.2. LIMITS OF 

SERVICES 

 

Page 72/848 
 

Can you please provide us with the following 

information regarding the Raw Water Gravity Main 

to be installed by the Dam Contractor: 

- Nominal Diameter, 

- Material of the pipe, 

- Coordinates of the extremity of the pipe (battery 

Please refer to Answer to Clarifications Set n°01, 
No 43. 
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limit) 

- Invert level to be considered 

13.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 

– Design Requirements and Performances 

Specifications - 

1.3.2. Treatment capacity 
 

Page 74/848 
 

It is stated that "As a safe design, water production 

will be designed on 22 hours of operation". We 

understand that the Contractor shall consider 22 

hours of operation per day for the whole system 

(i.e. Raw Water Pumping Station + Raw Water 

Pumping Mains + Water Treatment Plant) for the 

Operation Service pricing. Can you please confirm 

our understanding? 

  Please refer to Annex M – Revised Part 2, 7.2, 
1.3.2. 

14.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 – 
Design Requirements and Performances 
Specifications 
2.1. TREATMENT QUALITY 

and 

3.5.5.1. Filters characteristics 
 

Pages 76 & 
103 / 848 

Treated Water turbidity requirements are not 

consistent: 0,5 NTU are required in chapter "2.1. 

TREATMENT QUALITY" and 0,4 NTU are required in 

chapter "3.5.5.1. Filters characteristics". We 

understand that the only requirement to be 

considered is 0,5 NTU and that the requirement in 

chapter "3.5.5.1? Filters characteristics" shall be 

removed: can you please confirm our 

understanding. 

Correct, Table 2 in chapter 2.1 shall be 
considered as the reference (0.5 NTU).  

15.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 

– Design Requirements and Performances 

Specifications 

2.1.4. Noise 

& 

2.3. RAW WATER PUMPING STATION 
 

Page 78 
/848 

Concerning the noise level limitations, what is the 
acceptable noise level for the RWPS? What is the 
required noise level inside the RWPS? 
What is the required noise level outside the RWPS? 
 
We find 2 different texts "In the equipment rooms, 
the sound power emitted by all of the equipment 
in normal operating conditions must not exceed 
the following values: Total value: 80 dBA " and "The 
required key performance levels for the RWPS shall 
be as follows Noise Level – max. 70dB (A)" 
 
Is the 70 dB(A) a noise level for only one machine in 

In ALL the equipment rooms, excluding the 
RWPS, the sound power emitted by ALL of the 
equipment in normal operating conditions must 
not exceed a Total value of 80 dBA. 
 
For the RWPS, the sound power emitted by ALL 
of the equipment in normal operating conditions 
must not exceed a Total value of 90 dBA. 
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operation or all of them? 
Do you confirm that 80 dB()A is the maximum 
acceptable noise level with all machines in 
operation? this value seems low and difficult to 
attain. 
 

16.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 
– Design Requirements and Performances 
Specifications, sections 3.1.8.4. "lifting and 
handling equipment" 
& 3.1.11 "protection and safety of operating 
staff" 
 

Pages 84 
and 85/848 

Section 3.1.8.4. lifting and handling equipment 

states that: 

"Lifting equipment (movable if necessary) must be 
provided for handling stoplogs, trapdoors, 
inspection hole covers and any items exceeding 15 
kg in weight." 

Section 3.1.11 "protection and safety of operating 
staff" states that:    "The Contractor shall provide ... 
assisted handling for all loads over 50 kg." Those 
requirements seem contradictory, can you please 
clarify? 

The Contractor shall provide assisted handling 
for all loads over 15 kg. 

17.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements - Section 
7.2 – Design Requirements and Performances 
Specifications - 
3.3.3.3. Design Data 

Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 

Page 90/848 Can you please provide us with additional data from 

2012 to 2024 for the Water level in the Dam to take 

into account climate change? 

A simulation of the Dam reservoir over 54 years 
(up to 2012) is provided in Part 2, S7.2, item 
3.3.3.3 and is deemed adequate for the Bidders 
to prepare the Technical and Financial proposal. 
No other more recent data is available. 

18.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements - Section 
7.2 – Design Requirements and Performances 
Specifications - 
3.3.3.3. Design Data 

Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 

Page 90/848 Can you please provide us with additional data for 

level variation within a year for the Water level in 

the Dam to take into account the dry season / wet 

season? 

Refer to response No. 17. 

19.  Section 7.2 – Design Requirements and 
Performances Specifications 
3.5.2. Aeration 

Page 99/848 Can you please provide us with some details and 

specific requirements for the Aeration? 

 

No specific requirements requested for the 
Aeration. The Contractor shall propose a proven 
solution used in other water treatment plant 
that seems most suitable for the project’s 
context.  
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20.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 
– Design Requirements and Performances 
Specifications 
3.5.6.2. Chlorine disinfection 
 

Page 
104/848 

"The hypochlorite solution shall be produced on the 
site by electro chlorination or calcium hypochlorite 
solution. The residual chlorine can also be provided 
by use of gaseous chlorine. The Contractor shall 
provide for all three options for residual chlorine. " 

The requirement to provide the 3 chlorination 

systems seems excessive. Can you please relax this 

requirement? 

Design requirements regarding Chlorine 
disinfection is modified in the Answers to 
Clarifications Set n°01, Annex H- Revised Part 2, 
Section 7.2, 3.5.6.2.  

21.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements - Section 
7.6 – Specifications for Environmental, Social, 
Health and Safety (ESHS) Management of the 
Works - 2.4. SOCIAL INCLUSION 
REQUIREMENTS 

Page 
682/848 

Can you please specify if the required 18 000 hours 
of social inclusion shall be considered during the 
Design & Build phase, of during the Operation 
Service phase or both? 

 

The specified targeted number of hours of social 
inclusion is as follows: 

• Design – Build:  10,800 hours (Bidders to 
price under Schedule 5A - item, ESHS-5). 

• Operation Service:  10,800 hours (Bidders to 
price under Schedule 5B - item, ESHS-5) 

 

22.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements - Section 
7.6 – Specifications for Environmental, Social, 
Health and Safety (ESHS) Management of the 
Works - 2.4. SOCIAL INCLUSION 
REQUIREMENTS 

Page 
682/848 

What are the non process buildings that shall be 
accessible to the persons with reduced mobility? 

 

All the ancillary buildings within the WTP and 
RWPS (refer to Part 2, S7.2 item 3.18 – 3.19) 
shall be accessible to persons with reduced 
mobility. 

23.  PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND 
CONTRACT FORMS - Section 9 – 
Particular Conditions of Contract - Sub-clause 
8.1 

Page 23/69 It is stated that "The maximum time period for the 
Employer to notify the Conditional Part is: 365 days. 
" We understand that this time period of 365 days 
to notify the Conditional Part starts at 
Commencement Date of Firm Part: can you please 
confirm our understanding? 

Refer to response No. 09. 

24.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 1 – 

Instructions to Bidders Clause 20.3 

 
Page 15/103 

"If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a financial 

institution located outside the Employer’s Country, the 

issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent 

financial institution located in the Employer’s Country to 

make it enforceable unless the Employer has agreed in 

Not Acceptable. 
If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a 
financial institution/bank located outside the 
Employer’s Country, it is a mandatory 
requirement the issuing financial 
institution/bank shall have a correspondent 
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writing, prior to Bid submission, that a correspondent 

financial institution is not required." 

Is the issuance of the bid security by a financial 

institution located outside Kenya and without a 

correspondent bank is accepted by the Employer? 

financial institution/bank located in Kenya and 
approved by the Central Bank of Kenya. 

25.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 3 - 

Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR MAINTENANCE COSTS 

Page 44/103 In order to allow for fair comparison of the Operation 
and Maintenance Costs between the Bidders, can you 
please provide us with the unit price for electricity from 
Kenya Power and Lighting Company to be considered? 

All the unit prices for all variable costs 
(chemicals, electricity etc.) for operation and 
maintenance in schedule 8 includes the 
Contractor’s overheads and profit and are to be 
competitively priced by all the Bidders. 
It is Bidder’s responsibility to obtain the unit 
prices for all consumables. 

26.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 3 - 

Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR MAINTENANCE COSTS 

Page 44/103 In order to allow for fair comparison of the Operation 
and Maintenance Costs between the Bidders, can you 
please provide us with the unit prices for chemicals to 
be considered? 

27.  Part 1 – Bidding Procedures Section 3 - 

Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR MAINTENANCE COSTS 

Page 44/103 In order to allow for fair comparison of the Operation 
and Maintenance Costs between the Bidders, can you 
please provide us with a Operation and Maintenance 
costs calculation Excel file to be used by all Bidders for 
the computation of the prices for personnel, electricity, 
chemical, etc.? 

Calculation Excel file will not be provided. 
 

 

28.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements  Can you please specify the grade to be considered for 

Hydraulic performance acceptance tests of the pumps 

according to ISO 9906? 

The grade to be considered is ISO 9906, Grade 
1B. 

29.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements  Can you please specify for each fluid the accepted 
materials for internal and buried pipes within the RWPS 
and WTP? 

Details of pipes and fittings materials are 
contained in Part 2, Section VII, Sub-section 
14100 – Pipes, Fittings and Appurtenances. 

30.  Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements Section 7.2 – 

Design Requirements and Performances 

Specifications 

1.3.3. Raw water quality and 

2.1.1. Drinking water quality 

Pages 
74&75/848 
and Page 
76&77/848 

The values included in Table 1 – Final proposed water 

quality design input values and the ones included in the 

column "Raw Water Quality" of Table 2 – Drinking 

Water quality standards for Mwache WTP are not 

consistent. For example, in the first one, the pH range 

is 6,3 - 8,4 whereas it is 6,5 - 8,4 in the second one. 

Can you please clarify? 

Table 1 shall be considered as the reference for 
Raw water quality. 
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31.  Part 3 - Conditions of Contract Section 9 - 

Particular Conditions of Contract 

Part A - Contract Data - Sub-clause 6.12 

and 

Part B - Specific Provisions - Sub- clause 6.12 

Page 23/69 & 
39/69 

Sub-clauses 6.12 as described respectively in Part A - 
Contract Data and in Part B - Specific Provisions seem 
inconsistent. Can you please clarify? 

Refer to Annex A (1) and A (2) – revised PCC 
(Part A and B) 

32.  Part 3 - Conditions of Contract Section 9 - 

Particular Conditions of Contract 

Part A - Contract Data - Sub-clause 14.19 

and 
Part B - Specific Provisions - Sub- clause 14.19 

Page 25/69 & 
50/69 

In Part A - Contract Data - Sub-clause 14.19, the 

Maintenance Retention Fund is described whereas in 

Part B - Specific Provisions - Sub- clause 14.19, the sub-

clause is mentioned as "not applicable, to be deleted." 
 
Can you please clarify whether the Maintenance 

Retention Fund is applicable or not? 

Maintenance Retention Fund is applicable as 
detailed in Part A, which supersedes Part B 

33.   
Part 3 - Conditions of Contract / Section IX 

 
Clause 4.2 

FIDIC Gold: "The Performance Security shall be issued 

[…] from within a country (or other jurisdiction) 

approved by the Employer".    Can the Employer confirm 

if the issuance of the Performance Security by an 

international bank located outside the Employer’s 

Country is accepted? 

The security performance must be issued by a 
financial institution located within the 
Employer’s Country. 
 
If the performance guarantee is issued by a 
financial institution located outside the 
Employer’s Country, it is a mandatory 
requirement the issuing financial institution 
shall have a correspondent financial institution 
located in Kenya. 

34.   
Part 3 - Conditions of Contract / Section IX 

 
Clause 14.2 

"This guarantee shall be issued by a reputable bank or 

financial institution and from within a country (or other 

jurisdiction), as selected by the Contractor and 

approved by the Employer". 

Can the Employer confirm if the issuance of the Advance 

Payment Security by an international bank located 

outside the Employer’s Country is accepted? 
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35.  Contract:  
Part B Specific Provision 

Sub Clause 
1.1.24 Cost 
Plus Profit  

Provisions including the expression "Cost plus profit" 
require this profit to be one-twentieth (5%) of this 
Cost."  
Please adjust the percentage of the profit to be 10 % 
including the profit with overhead  

 
 
 
The provisions of Part B, Sub-clause 1.1.24 are 
retained – “profit to be one-twentieth (5%) of 
this Cost “. 

36.   Part B Specific Provision Sub-Clause 1.5 
Priority of 
Documents 

Please consent to the addition of documents to this 
clause; it is assumed that the employer's responses and 
the addendums must be given precedence.  

Yes, the responses to clarification requests will 
prevail on the other contract documents. 

37.  Part B Specific Provision Sub-Clause 2.4 
& Sub-Clause 
8.1  

The commencement dates of both firm and conditional 
parts are tied to the letter of award, access to the site, 
and proof of finance, 
Please Accepting additional receipt for Advance 
Payment and Constitution DAB. 

The Constitution DAB shall be inline with the 
provision of GCC and PCC 20.3. 

38.  Part B Specific Provision Sub-clause 3.3 
Instructions of 
the Employer’s 
Representative 

"These instructions shall be given in writing." is replaced 
with: "Whenever practicable, their instructions shall be 
given in writing. If the Employer’s Representative or a 
delegated assistant: 
(a) Gives an oral instruction, 
For the purpose of maintaining correct records and 
preventing future disagreements, written instructions 
ought to be required. Please Confirm  

 
The issue of issuance of oral instructions by the 
Employer’s Representative or delegated 
assistant is adequately covered in PCC Sub-
clause 3.3 (b & c) of Part B. The Contractor is 
required to issue a written confirmation of the 
instruction within two working days. 

39.  Part B Specific Provision Sub-clause 
4.12 
Unforeseeable 
Physical 
Conditions 

The Employer’s Representative shall take account of any 
evidence of the physical conditions foreseen by the 
Contractor when submitting the Tender, which shall be 
made available by the Contractor, but shall not be bound 
by the Contractor’s interpretation of any such 
evidence." 
Could you please clarify the typical physical conditions 
expected in Kenya? 

 
Available relevant information regarding the 
Project Site in the Employer’s possession is 
provided under the Employer’s Requirements, 
S7.1, Sub-section 2. 
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40.  Part B Specific Provision New Sub-
clause 4.27 
Existing Facility   

The Contractor shall take over, rehabilitate, upgrade, 
operate and maintain the Existing Facilities to the extent 
specified in the Employer’s Requirements. 
 
Please clarify what the existing facilities are. According 
to the site visit, the plant is located empty and has no 
facilities.  

 
 
 
 
 
New Sub-clause 4.27 in Part B – Specific 
Provisions is deleted. 

41.  Part B Specific Provision Sub-Clause 
14.1 Contract 
Price 

Please Clarify all the taxes, duties & fess exemptions? The Project is NOT tax exempted. All 
applicable taxes are applicable and should be 
included in the format provided in Bidders 
Financial Proposal. 

42.  

Section 9 – Particular Conditions of Contract 
Clause 14.2 

Advance 
Payment 

10 % of the Accepted Design and Built Component 
The Scope and requirements of the project, an 
increased advance payment of [20]% would greatly 
assist in covering initial costs and securing the 
necessary resource - Please Confirm  

 
 
Advance Payment remains 10 % of the 
Accepted Design and Built Component. 

43.  Percentage deductions for the repayment of the 
Advance Payment: 20% of each IPC until complete 
repayment. 
Kindly accept to add Amortization shall start after 30% 
progress and not form the first IPC  

Sub clause 14.2 is added in PCC, Part A: 
Deductions shall commence in the Interim 
Payment Certificate in which the total of all 
certified interim payments (excluding the 
advance payment and deductions and 
repayments of retention) exceeds twenty 
percent (20%) of the Accepted Contract 
Amount for the Design-Build less Provisional 
Sums 

44.  Section 9 Particular Condition of Contract  Clause 9.3 
Extension of 
Time  

Extension of time (EOT) of completion of Design -build/ 
exceptional advises climatic condition is not applicable. 
  
What was the reason behind removing EOT from the 
Exceptional Advertising Condition? Please consider 
that the weather must require an extension of time.  

 
 
Sub clause 9.3 in PCC (Part A – Contract Data) 
is deleted. Provisions of Sub clause 9.3 in the 
GCC remains applicable. 
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45.  Section 9 Particular Condition of Contract  Sub Clause 
14.19 
Maintenance 
Retention 
Fund  

The maintenance retention fund percentage of 5% is 
stated in the contract data (Part A) and clause 14.19 was 
removed from the (Part B Specific Provision) on page no 
31. 
 
Would you kindly explain the process for the 
Notification, Deduction the percentage and Release of 
funds 

 
Please refer to response to query 32. 
 
Sub clause 14.19 of Part A – Contract Data 
superseded sub clause 14.19 of Part B – 
Specific Provisions. 
 
The process for maintenance retention fund is 
adequately detailed in the GCC 14.19. 

46.  
    

Please provide a one-month time extension for the 
submission.  

See the cover letter 

47.  

    

Please provide plant and RWPS layout showing 
boundaries and coordinates. 

Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 
n°01 - Annex C (2) – Contractual boundaries 
coordinates for the WTP and RWPS sites 
 

48.  

    

Please confirm that the feeding cable 33Kv up to 
outside RWPS fence is out of this project scope 

Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 
n°01 – n°34. 

49.  

    

Please clarify whether the connection pipeline and 
feeding cable between WTP and RWPS is in this project 
scope. 

The Raw Water Pumping Main of approx. 
length 1.9Km and design capacity of 2.47m3 
/s is part of the project scope. Refer to Part 2, 
S 7.1, Sub section 4. 

50.  

    

It is mentioned in part 2 section 7.2 item 2.1.3 that the 
required sludge dryness is 40%, while this percentage is 
not achievable by traditional drying beds or mechanical 
dewatering equipment, please confirm that 20% 
dryness is accepted. 

The required sludge dryness is 40%.  

51.  
    

Please confirm that mechanical dewatering is accepted 
instead of drying beds. 

The dewatering step shall be made by drying 
beds according to the Works requirements.  
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52.  

    

It is mentioned in part 2 that disinfection will be done 
by UV followed by a small dose of chlorine to achieve 
0.5 ppm residual chlorine, while the common practice 
for WTP is to introduce pre-disinfection at the plant 
inlet to avoid algae and pathogen growth in tanks in 
addition to a final dose at the outlet, also as UV is not 
recommended in this application; therefore, please 
confirm utilizing sodium hypochlorite only (pre + Post) 
for disinfection. 

- Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 
n°01 – n°48. 

53.  

    
Please confirm that other clarifiers technologies are 
accepted instead of DAF 

The sole acceptable technology for Clarifiers 
shall be Dissolved Air Flotation. This 
stipulation supersedes any conflicting 
requirements stated in the Employer’s 
requirements. 

54.  

    
Please clarify whether the cost of chemicals, power 
consumption and sludge disposal during commissioning 
is included in this project scope 

The cost of chemicals, power consumption and 
sludge disposal during the commissioning and 
the operation service is included in the project 
scope. Bidder are to price appropriately for 
these items in Schedule 01 for the 
commissioning and in Schedule no.8 for the  
Operation Service. 

55.  

    
Please clarify whether the cost of chemicals, power 
consumption and sludge disposal during O&M is 
included in this project scope 

The cost of chemicals, power consumption and 
sludge disposal during the operation service is 
included in the project scope. Bidders are to 
price appropriately for these items in Schedule 
no.8 – Operation Service. 

56.  

    

It is mentioned in part 2 section 7.2 item 1.4 that “All 
the wastewater resulting from the water treatment 
such as: thickeners overflow and water drainage from 
the drying beds shall be discharged into the dam” 
please clarify if the pipeline conveying this wastewater 
outside WTP to the DAM is included in this project 
scope. 

 
All the required facilities for handling and 
disposal of the backwash water and sludge 
treatment (including the pipe to the Dam) are 
part of the Project scope. 
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57.  

    

kindly specify the location of the electric power source 
to use in construction 

33kV KPLC power supply is available within 
close proximity of the project site. The 
Contractor shall be responsible for application 
and payment of any temporary power supply 
for construction. 

58.  

    

please confirm that it is possible to withdraw and store 
water from Mwache River to use in the construction 
works. 

The Client has clearly indicated that the site 
for the WTP and raw water pumping station 
has no existing water supply facilities.  
 

It is the Contractor’s responsibility to make all 
provisions for the supply of water required for 
the execution of the Works as well as 
adequate quantities of potable water for all 
personnel. 
 

The bidders should carry out their own 
investigation on the closest water sources and 
their adequacy, and define themselves if a 
temporary water retaining structure is 
required for implementation of the works. 
If the Contractor wants to withdraw water 
from Mwache River, it shall get the approval 
from the relevant authority.  
  

59.  

    
Please confirm that the RWPS Site will be levelled and 
handed over by the engineer to the WTP Contractor as 
mentioned during the site visit and specify the site level. 

Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 
n°01 – n°41. 

60.  

    
please confirm that the use of explosives for excavation 
is allowed inside the site boundaries as mentioned 
during the site visit 

Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 
n°01 – n°36. 

61.  

    
please specify the available area solely for the WTP 
contractor to use for the mobilization 

 
There is land available (approx. 2.5 Acres) 
within 2.5Km radius of the WTP that can be 
used by the Contractor for the temporary 
facilities (camp, yards etc.) 
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62.  Scope of works - Firm Part - WTP "Key Units" The 
general requirements item 7.1, chapter 4.1.2 WTP 
key units include “barrack for the staff and 
families”.  

4.1.2 Please clarify whether “barrack for the staff and 
families” should be included and the corresponding 
area. 

 “Barracks for staff and families” is not part of 
the project scope of this Contract. 

63.  PART 2 - Section 7.1 General Requirements - 2.3 
Project Location 
 
 PART 2 - Section 7.9 Drawings for Information 

2.3 The preliminary design WTP layout plan for information 
in Section 7.9 seems very difference from the proposed 
Mwache WTP Site shown in the Figure 1 of Chapter 2.3 
/ Section 7.1 / Part 2. Furthermore, it does not 
correspond to the site inspection at the pre-bid 
conference. Please clarify is there any restrict on the 
footprint or specific land use available of the proposed 
WTP. 

 Please refer to Answer to clarifications Set 

n°01 – n°27. 

64.  Motor and Pump Efficiencies 
RWPS Efficiency of motors:  min 94% 
Efficiency of pumps: min 89% 

2.3 We consulted with different suppliers and found that 
the motor efficiency can meet the requirements, but the 
water pump efficiency is generally below 83% due to the 
large range of water pump head. We suggest adjusting 
the efficiency to this range. 

The requirement is modified as follows: 

• Motor Efficiency class IE3 acc. to 
IEC60034-30-1 

• Minimum pump efficiency – 85% for 
the full range of the variable 
pumping head. 

 
In the Bid Proposal, the Contractor is required 
to provide pump performance curve and the 
efficiency simulation of the selected / 
proposed pump for the full range of the 
variable pumping head.  

65.  Air Conditioning and Ventilation 
The system shall have a centralised system of hot 
and chilled water and thermostatically controlled 
fan coil units in each room 

3.16.15.2 It is not clear which system is to be installed. The first 
statement suggest the installation of a chiller while the 
second is for a split unit. For a small building a chiller is 
not normally specified, Split units are better as they are 
more flexible. If 1 breaks down, it does not affect the 
whole system.  

 All Air Conditioning systems to be installed by 
the Contractor shall be split AC Systems. 
  

66.  The air conditioning system shall be divided into 
different split units  

  



Design, Build and Operate of Mwache Water Treatment Plant (CWWDA/AFD/W3/2022-2023) 

Page 33 of 39 
 

Responses to requests for Clarifications (Set No. 02) 

No. Reference Document / Section Clause or Page Request for Clarification Responses 

67.  Drinking Water Quality 
Table 2 - Drinking Water quality standards for 
Mwache WTP provides the raw water quality and 
effluent water standard of the proposed WTP.  

2.1.1 The values of Organic Matter by KMnO4 and Chl-a in 
raw water seem abnormal (15 mg/l and 650mg/l, quite 
high, especially that of Chl-a). Please check and confirm 
these two values and explain the reference or 
derivation. 

Organic Matter by KMnO4 and Chl-a are 
deleted from the water quality parameters in 
Part 2, Section 7.2, Table 1 – Final proposed 
water quality design input values and Table 2 
– Drinking water quality standards for 
Mwache WTP 

68.  The Tender does not give effluent water standard 
on Organic Matter by KMnO4 and Chl-a. Related 
requirement concerning these two items cannot 
be found in KS 05-459 as well. However, the 
removal of these two contaminant items will 
significantly influence the selection of treatment 
process and water line design.  

2.1.1 For the purpose of evaluation. Please clarify the removal 
requirement and effluent standard of Organic Matter by 
KMnO4 and Chl-a for the proposed Mwache WTP.  

Refer to response n° 67. 

69.  Water Treatment Line 
"Contractor is free to adapt the suggested 
waterline due to its experience in water 
treatment as long as the proposed treatment is 
compliant with clauses 2 - Required performance 
levels, 3.1 - General and 3.2 - Project 
description."  

3.5.3~3.5.7  
Please clarify if the process design and design 
parameters provided in Chapter 3.5.3~3.5.7 can be 
adjusted according to Contractor's experience and 
capability 

  
The water treatment line presented in Part 2, 
section 7.2, chapter 3.5, table 3 define the 
minimum units to be included. It is compulsory 
to include all the described treatment units 
and the design requirements for each unit is 
defined in the chapter 3.5.  
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70.  The minimum design requirement for 
flocculation retention time is 20min. The 
flocculation tank shall be equipped with shaft 
mixers. 

3.5.4.2 According to previous experience and references, 
hydraulic flocculation with less retention time is 
introduced to instead the design of long retention 
mechanical flocculation in the flotation unit. This is an 
optimized hydraulic flocculation system with plug flow 
that enables the best possible use of the available 
volume without any risk of by-pass, being more 
efficient than conventional mechanical flocculation. 
Thus the flocculation time is shorter and the floc is of a 
more homogenous quality. It is a energy friendly way 
and easy to operate. Moreover, we think a flocculation 
retention time of 20min is too long because over-
flocculation will result to "big flocs" that intend to 
settle down instead of float up. This might cause failure 
of the performance of the flotation unit. 
Please clarify: if an optimized hydraulic flocculation 
system with less retention time can be applied. 

The Contractor is free to propose the retention 
time in the flocculation time. The Contractor 
shall respect the design requirements 
indicated in the Section 3.5.4.2.  
 
For clarifications purposes and to avoid 
misunderstanding between Employer’s 
requirements and suggested water line, Part 
2, section 7.2, chapter 3.5, figure 5 is deleted.  

71.  Chemical reagents injection & building 
"All chemical injection devices at each point of 
application must be duplicated to allow one to be 
taken out of service for cleaning, without 
interrupting chemical dosing."  

3.7.2 Please clarify if all the chemical dosing pumps should 
with 100% standby (i.e. N on duty plus N in stand-by) 

 Confirmed.  

72.  “The capacity of the reagent storage shall be at 
least three months at the final design capacity.” 

3.7.3 Sulfuric acid will be applied in the proposed WTP. 
According to Section 7.10 of Employer's requirements, 
the TAC in raw water is high. So the designed dosage of 
sulfuric acid is not low in this project. Based on the 
current design base and process calculation, the 3 
months of reagent storage capacity is too large for liquid 
reagent - sulfuric acid. It is recommended to adjust the 
storage capacity of liquid sulfuric acid to 30 days. Please 
clarify. 

 Agreed, reagent storage capacity is modified 
to 45 days.  
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73.  Potable Water Systems 
ER Item No. 3.15.2: Potable Water System (WTP 
and RWPS): The water shall be abstracted from 
the treated water tank and pumped to an elevated 
tank. The capacity of the tank shall be at least 
equal to 2 days storage for the WTP demand. 
 
ER Item No. 3.15.3: Potable Water System (other 
facilities within the Dam area): The water shall be 
abstracted from the treated water tank and 
pumped to an elevated tank. The capacity of the 
tank shall be at least equal to 2 days storage for 
the WTP demand. 

3.15.2~3.15.3  
Please clarify whether these two Potable Water System 
can be shared, whether the 100m3 reinforced concrete 
tank is already included in the dam contract and specify 
the water demand and pressure requirements for the 
facilities within the Dam area. 

The scope for the potable water supply system 
for other facilities within the Dam area (base 
camp, clinic, police post etc.) has been 
clarified in Answers to clarifications Set n°01, 
Response No. 19. The elevated RC tank under 
this scope will be constructed by the WTP 
Contractor at approx. 3km from the WTP.  
 
The Contractor will design and construct an 
independent potable water supply system for 
the facilities within the WTP and RWPS. This 
system will include elevated storage tanks 
within the WTP and RWPS with a storage 
capacity of at least 2 days storage. 

74.  UV disinfection 

2 lines of 6 UV reactor（5+1UV by line）
4450m3/h per line 

3.5 The number of UV lamp with medium pressure lamps is 
relatively fewer, and maintenance only requires 

replacing the lamps damaged，which takes less time. 

Therefore, only 3 UV reactors are needed. If the 
configuration is set according to the tender document 
with 5 +1 UV by line, more expenses will be incurred. 
Meanwhile, the civil work costs will also be higher. 
Please clarify whether 3 UV reactors for 4450m3/h per 
line meets the requirements specified in the tender 
document. 

The Contractor shall design the UV 
disinfection unit with 2 lines. The Contractor 
shall propose his own design based on this 
consideration.  
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75.  11100 - 2.1.3 Motors  
“The motor and the cable are capable of 
continuous submergence underwater without 
loss of watertight integrity acc. To protection 
class IP68 (20m), the rated power shall be 
adequate so that the pump is not overloaded 
throughout the entire indicated pump 
performance curve. ” 
11110 - 2.1.3 Motors 
The motor and the cable are capable of 
continuous submergence underwater without 
loss of watertight integrity acc. To protection 
class IP68 (20m), the rated power shall be 
adequate so that the pump is not overloaded 
throughout the entire indicated pump 
performance curve. 
11220 - 2.1.2 Motor and gear head  
“The gear reducer motor shall fit with:  
· Working outdoors,  
· Working hours: 24 hours per day  
· Protection grade IP68,  
· Isolation class E, · 230V or 400 V, · 3 phases,  
· 50Hz, · Rated power 20% higher than maximum 
actual power. ” 
11710 - 2.1.2.3 Motors  
" To protection class IP68 (20m), the rated power 
shall be adequate so that the pump is not 
overloaded throughout the entire indicated 
pump performance curve. "  

11100 
CENTRIFUGAL 
PUMPS 
& 11110 
PROGRESSIVE 
CAVITY PUMPS  
& 11220 
VERTICAL 
SHAFTMIXERS  
& 11710 
POLYMER 
PREPARATION 

IP68 is normally required for submergence equipment. 
If dry centrifugal pump is selected, it will be dry-
mounted and there are no cables installed underwater. 
Progressive cavity pumps are not suitable to be 
installed submergence underwater. Similarly, motors 
for vertical shaft mixers and polymer preparation unit 
will not installed underwater under any circumstances 
and there are no cables installed underwater either. 
After consulting with mainstream suppliers, it is hard to 
find appropriate motor products with IP68 protection 
class for those dry-mounted equipment. According to 
previous experience and feedbacks from suppliers, 
protection class of IP55 is normally applied and enough 
for motors of dry centrifugal pump, progressive cavity 
pumps, vertical shaft mixers and polymer preparation 
units.  
Please clairfy: Whether motors of dry centrifugal pump, 
progressive cavity pumps, vertical shaft mixers and 
polymer preparation units can apply IP55 protection 
class. 

 IP55 protection class for motors of dry 
centrifugal pump, progressive cavity pumps, 
vertical shaft mixers and polymer preparation 
units is acceptable. 

76.  2.1.3 Motors  
"The pump will have a minimum efficiency of 
94% with an IE3 Motor Class"; 

11100  
Centrifugal 
pump  
  

After consulting with mainstream suppliers, it is found 
that the motor efficiency of centrifugal pumps installed 
in the WTP is generally between 88% and 93%. It is 
recommended to adjust the efficiency to this range. 
Please clarify. 

 Refer to response no. 64. 
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77.  2 "In order to cater for communications failures, 
the PLC shall be capable of holding 8 days’ worth 
of data as follows  a) Analogue, totalised and 
derived signals - on significant change/15 minute 
intervals. 
b) Digital signals on change of state." 

17010-Scada 
System 
Requirements 

In general engineering design, PLC plays a role of 
control rather than data storage. Data storage is usually 
undertaken by SCADA. We have improved the overall 
performance and safety of the PLC by configuring 
redundant CPU communicating with SCADA through 
fiber optic ring network. The probability of 
communication failures is very low. Therefore, PLC 
does not need to store data for 8 days.  
Based on the above optimized configuration we 
provided, it is recommended to cancel the requirement 
of 8 days' data storage for PLC. Please clarify. 

 In the proposed configuration with redundant 
PLCs and fiber optic ring links to the scada 
system, data storage for 8 days is not 
necessary, but information and status must be 
retained by the PLC in the event of loss of the 
communication network, until it is restored. 

78.  5.8 "A serial RS 232 port shall be available to 
enable interfacing to local PC's for MMI 
purposes to allow local database and control 
sequence loading, interrogation or 
modification. The port shall cater for 
communication with a suitable encoding device." 

17010-Scada 
System 
Requirements 

According to inquiry with mainstream suppliers, RS232 
is not standard configuration in most PLCs on market. 
Ethernet communication is better than RS232 because 
Ethernet is faster and stabler. If Ethernet interface for 
communication is configured, there is no need to 
reserve RS232.  
Please clarify: Whether RS232 can be replaced by a 
better Ethernet interface. 

This chapter does not deal with PLCs, but with 
local PCs that can be used as HMIs. 

79.  5.5 "The preferred input signal is 4-20mA; 
continuous; linear supporting a fully floating max 
250 ohm 
input impedance load. Analogue/Digital 
conversion shall have a minimum 8 bit resolution, 
linear 
to ±1%, accepting signals in the range 0-10mA 
and 0-20mA and voltages 1-5V, 0-1V and 0- 
100mV as required" 

17010-Scada 
System 
Requirements 

According to inquiry with mainstream suppliers, it is 
hard to find an analogue input module that accepts all 
the current and voltage signals including the ranges of 
0-10mA and 0-20mA and voltages 1-5V, 0-1V and 0-
100mV.  
Since the preferred input signal is 4-20mAC, we will 
choose a product that accepts 4-20mA/0-20mA signals 
only. Please clarify. 

The preferred input signal is 4-20mA; 
continuous; linear supporting a fully floating 
max 250 ohms input impedance load. 
 
The Analogue/Digital conversion shall have a 
minimum 8 bits resolution, linear 
to ±1%, accepting signals in the range 0-10mA 
and 0-20mA and voltages 1-5V, 0-1V and 0- 
100mV as required. 
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80.  In section 7.5.2, various lists of spare parts are 
required in the corresponding specifications for 
different equipment including progressive cavity 
pump, dosing pumps, air blowers, polymer 
preparation, valves, stop logs, and air compressor. 
After consulting with suppliers, it is found that 
some of these "spare parts" are not applicable or 
beyond the defination of spare parts. And in some 
place, 3-year spare parts are required. These 
requirements seem unreasonable and 
contradictory to the requirements of spare parts 
specified in Section 7.1 of ER.  

11110、11120

、11400、

11710、15150

、15200、
15600 

Please clarify: besides the 2-year and 5-year spare parts 
recommended by the manufacturers/suppliers, are 

those spare parts listed in 7.5.2 are mandatory？ How 

to deal with those inapplicable ones？ 

 The Contractor shall provide spare parts for 
the WTP and RWPS as follows: 
 
a) Manufacturers recommended spare parts: 

• Spare parts for the 2-year 
Contractor’s Operation Service – to 
be provided before issuance of 
Commissioning Certificate. 

• Spare parts for 5-year Operation 
Period for the Employer i.e. beyond 
the Contractor’s Operation Service – 
to be provided 6 months before 
completion of the Operation Service. 

b) Additional spare parts for key equipments 
which are clearly listed in the Technical 
Specifications (Part 2, S7.5.1).  
 

In cases where Part 2, S7.5.1 has not listed any 
specific spare parts for the installed 
equipments, the Contractor will only supply 
the 2-year and 5-year spare parts 
recommended by the Manufacturer.  

81.  3.2.2. DRY TESTS 
"2. Machine must run for two hours without 
water and without any noticeable problem 
(noise,axial position…)." 

11220 Vertical 
Shaft Mixers 

After consulting with suppliers, it is found that only the 
vertical mixers with VSD can be allowed to run without 
water.  
It is recommended to cancel this requirement for fixed 
frequency vertical mixers. Please clarify. 

 We don't understand why vertical shaft 
mixers can't be tested at no load if they're not 
controlled by frequency variation. 

82.  1.3 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION, CHARACTERISTICS 
AND OPERATING CONDITIONS 
"Compressors shall be electrically driven, piston, 
type." 

15600 AIR 
COMPRESSORS 

Piston type compressors have gradually been 
eliminated from the market due to their disadvantages 
such as vibration, high noise, and low efficiency. 
It is recommended to select mainstream and high-
efficiency type - screw compressor. Please clarify. 

 Compressors can be of the screw or turbo 
type. 
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83.  

The Contractor shall ensure that the Works 
comply with the handback requirements specified 
in the Employer's Requirements prior to the issue 
of the Contract Completion Certificate. GCC 8.7 

What are the hand back requirements? Please specify. The Contractor shall fully comply with the 
Employer’s Requirements and hand over the 
works to the Employer upon completion and 
commissioning.  

84.  

How long of the warranty period for the supplied 
equipment? The bidding document only mentions 
Design Service Life, which is not the same concept 
as the warranty period.  

  Please specify the warranty period for the supplied 
equipment 

 To be defined.  

85.  

The deadline for bid submission is: 
Date: 11th November 2024 
Time: 12:00 PM (Local Time) 

ITB 22.3 & ITB 
23.1 

About the deadline for bid submission, we request 
extend 28 days. 

Please refer to response to query no. 46.  
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Annex A- Revised Part 1, Section 3, 2.3 

 



Part 1 – Bidding Procedures 

Section 3 – Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 
Design, Build and operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant 
August 2024 11 

2.3. OPERATION AND/OR MAINTENANCE COSTS 

An adjustment to take into account the extended operating and/or maintenance costs of the Works will be added to 
the Bid Price, for evaluation purposes only. The adjustment will be calculated by determining the total Operation & 
Maintenance Evaluated Price (OMEP) using the following formula: 

𝑂𝑀𝐸𝑃 =  ෍ 𝑂𝑀௫

ே

௫ୀଵ

+  ෍
𝑂𝑀ே

(1 + 𝐼)௫ିே

ெ

௫ୀଵାே

 

Where: 

N = Number of years of Operation Service already included in the Contract (Sub-Clause 8.2 of 
PCC); 

M = The life span expectancy of the facility specified in the Table of performance requirements 
of Section VII, Employer's Requirements; 

x = An index number 1, 2, 3, ... M representing the total number of years to be taken into 
account in the bid evaluation with regards to operation and/or maintenance costs; 

OM(*) = Operation Service cost for year "x," as provided by the Bidder in the specific Operation 
Service Price Schedule (Schedule 5) of Price Schedules of Section IV, Bidding Forms. The 
rate for the last year priced under the Contract shall be applied for each subsequent year; 

I = Discount rate to be used for the Net Present Value calculation. 

 (*) This cost includes electricity cost even if the electricity payments are made by the 
Employer. 

 

Asset Replacement (AR) is calculated as follows: 

AR = EM + EL + IT 
Where: 

EM = Cost of replacement of Electromechanical Equipment, as listed and priced by the Bidder in 
Schedules 2, 3 and 4, for a replacement period set at ten (10) years during the life span 
expectancy of the facility specified in the Table of performance requirements of Section VII, 
Employer's Requirements; 

EL = Cost of replacement of Electrical Equipment, as listed and priced by the Bidder in Schedules 
2, 3 and 4, for a replacement period set at fifteen (15) years during the life span expectancy 
of the facility specified in the Table of performance requirements of Section VII, Employer's 
Requirements; 

IT = Cost of replacement of IT and automatic devices, as listed and priced by the Bidder in 
Schedules 2, 3 and 4, for a replacement period set at five (5) years during the life span 
expectancy of the facility specified in the Table of performance requirements of Section VII, 
Employer's Requirements. 

 

The Operation and Maintenance costs and Asset replacement will be estimated separately for both Phase 1 (Firm Part, 
50% WTP capacity) and Phase 2 (Conditional Part). 

  



Annex B - Revised Requirements for Key Personnel 



Revised section 33.2 of Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements / Section 7.1 – General Requirements: 

 

33.2. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OF KEY PERSONNEL 

The key personnel qualifications are evaluated according to section 1.3 “Scoring of the Technical bid” of “Part 1 – Section 3_Evaluation Criteria”. The key 

personnel shall meet the following minimum requirements: 

 

No. Position Quantity / Nr. Minimum qualifications and works experience 

KP 1 Project Manager 

 

1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in project management 

• Experience as project manager from at least 3 WTP construction projects with capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 2 Process Expert 

 

1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in WTP process design 

• Experience as process designer from at least 3 WTP construction projects with one project having a 
capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in civil / water process engineering or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 3 Construction Site 
Manager 

1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in construction site management 

• Experience as construction site manager from at least 3 WTP construction projects with one project 
having a capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 4 Construction Site 
Engineer 

3Nr. • At least 10 years’ experience in construction site works 

• Experience as construction site engineer from at least 3 WTP construction projects with one project 
having a capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 5 Engineering Surveyor 1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in engineering surveying 

• Experience as a surveyor from at least 3 similar projects (WTP, WWTP, industrial plant) having a capacity 
> 4,500 m3/h. 



No. Position Quantity / Nr. Minimum qualifications and works experience 

• Hold University Degree in engineering surveying or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 6 Operation and 
Maintenance Manager 

1Nr. • At least 10 years’ experience in WTP operation and management 

• Experience as O&M manager on at least 3 WTP construction projects with one project having a capacity 
> 4,500 m3/h and managed for a minimum duration of two years 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 7 Electromechanical 
expert 

1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in WTP and pumping stations design and operation 

• Experience as Electromechanical expert from at least 3 WTP construction projects with one project 
having a capacity > 4,500 m3/h  

• Experience as Electromechanical expert from at least 3 large pumping stations with at least one project 
having a pumping station capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in mechanical / electrical engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 8 Structural Engineer 1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in structural design of WTPs or WWTPs 

• Experience as structural engineer for at least 3 WTP or WWTP having a capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in structural / civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 9 Electricity and SCADA 
expert 

1Nr. • At least 15 years’ experience in Electrical and SCADA industrial design 

• Experience as Electricity and SCADA expert from at least 3 industrial plants with one of which is a WTP 
construction projects with capacity > 4,500 m3/h 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in electrical/electronics engineering, instrumentation and controls engineering or 
in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 10 ESHS manager/expert 1Nr. • At least 10 years’ experience in managing ESHS aspects in construction sites and 5 years’ specific 
experience as an ESHS Expert  in large water infrastructure projects. 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in environmental studies or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 11 Environmental and 
social Officer 

1Nr. • At least 5 years’ experience in managing ESHS aspects in construction sites and 2 years’ experience as 
an EHS Officer in water infrastructure projects 

• Be fluent in English language 



No. Position Quantity / Nr. Minimum qualifications and works experience 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in environmental studies or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 12 Health and Safety Officer 1Nr. • At least 5 years’ experience in managing health and safety aspects of construction sites and 2 years’ 
experience as a H&S Officer in water infrastructure projects 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in social/safety studies or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 13 Architect 1Nr. • At least 5 years’ experience in industrial architectural design and 2 years specific experience in designing 
water infrastructure projects. 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Engineering Degree in architecture or in any other relevant discipline.  

KP 14 Technical Trainings 
Manager 

1Nr. • At least 10 years’ experience in operation and maintenance of water infrastructure and 5 years’ 
experience in technical training in WTP with at least one WTP >4500m3/d. 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in civil engineering or in any other relevant discipline. 

KP 15 Employment and Social 
Inclusion Expert 

1Nr. • At least 10 years’ experience in employment and social inclusion and 5 years’ experience as an 
employment and social inclusion expert in water infrastructure Projects. 

• Be fluent in English language 

• Hold University Degree in social sciences or in any other relevant discipline. 
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1

2

3

4

5 The following abbreviations are used:

L=Litres

Nm3=Normal Cubic Meter

6

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

The Price Schedules shall be read in conjunction with the other documents forming part of this Contract in 
particular with the priced Activity Schedule prepared by the Bidder. The Price Schedules shall be submitted also on 
electronic format.

The total amount of the Price Schedules shall be carried to the Letter of Bid.

Notwithstanding any limits which may be implied by the wording of the individual activities and/or the explanations 
in this Preamble, it is to be clearly understood that the amounts entered in the Price Schedules are to be for the 
work finished, complete in every respect; and will be deemed to have taken full account of all requirements and 
obligations, whether expressed or implied, covered by all parts of this Contract and to have priced the activities 
herein accordingly.  The amounts must therefore include for temporary works, all incidental and contingent 
expenses and risks of every kind necessary to design, construct, complete and maintain the whole of the Works in 
accordance with the Contract.  Unless separate items are provided in the Price Schedules, full allowance shall be 
made in the sums stated for all works and costs involved. The prices shown in the price schedules will include all 
taxes and customs, import duties, levies but exclusive of VAT for a proper evaluation. However, the bidder to clearly 
indicate the VAT amounts in the summary.

It will be assumed that any activity or item left without a price entered against it, has the price of that activity or 
item included elsewhere in the Price Schedules.  After the award of contract no alteration will be made to the Price 
Schedules to rectify any “un-priced” activities or items.

Preamble 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Nr. = Number

h or hr = hour
m3 = cubic metre

The prices stated in the Price Schedules shall exclude VAT and shall include all customs duties, import taxes, 
business taxes,  income and other taxes that may be levied on Goods and services according to the laws and 
regulations being in force in Kenya on the date 28 days prior to the date of submission of the Bids. 

hr= Hour
L.S = Lump Sum

mg = milligram
mm = millimetre

m2 = square metre
d or day = day
Nm3 = Normal cubic meter

P.S. = Provisional Sum
T = tonne
Kg = Kilogramme
kWh = Kilowatt Hour



Schedule No. 1: Preliminary Items

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1.1 Mobilisation cost including site preparation L.S

1.2
Establishment and maintenance of Contractor's office and 
accommodation

L.S

1.3
Establishment and maintenance of fully furnished and equiped 
Offices for the Engineer including provision of all utilities.

L.S

1.4
Engineer's Support Staff including including basic pay, overtime, 
house allowance, per diems and other allowances.

L.S

1.5 Guarantees L.S

1.6 Insurances L.S

1.7 Topographical survey L.S

1.8
Geotechnical investigations including additional studies for soil 
native characteristics

L.S

1.9
Obtaining of approvals and permissions prior to the 
commencement of construction.

L.S

1.10 Design of All the Project Works (includes the conditional part) L.S

1.11 Preparation and submission of “As-built” Drawings L.S

1.12
Preparation of Quality Assurance and Quality Control Plan and 
compliance with the QC/QA requirements

L.S

1.13
Preparation and submission of Operation and Maintenance 
documents and manuals

L.S

1.14 Pre-commissioning tests L.S

1.15 Commissioning Tests L.S

1.16 Tests on completion L.S

1.17 Demobilisation and removal of Contractor’s Camps L.S

Provisional Sums

1,18 Provisional Sums (fixed price) - Refer to Schedule No. 10

Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for the 
satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S

b) L.S

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

1,19

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Item Description Unit
Specify Currency [1]

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Price
(excluding VAT)



Schedule No. 2: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied From Abroad

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1.1 Mechanical Works
1.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 
1.1.1.1 Pumps L.S
1.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings L.S
1.1.1.4 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) 
L.S

1.1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains 
1.1.2.1 Pipes and Fittings L.S
1.1.2.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.2.3 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) 
L.S

1.1.3 Water Treatment Plant
1.1.3.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
1.1.3.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.1.3.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.1.3.4 Filtration L.S
1.1.3.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.1.3.6 Treated Water Tank L.S
1.1.3.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.1.3.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.1.3.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.1.3.10 Conveying system L.S
1.1.3.11 Auxiliary standby diesel engine generator to serve both the 

WTP and RWPS
L.S

1.1.3.12 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

L.S

1.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, 
Workshop, Laboratory, Gatehouse etc.)

L.S

1.2 Electrical Works 
1.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.2.1.1 Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 
transformers

L.S

1.2.1.2 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.1.3 LV equipment connection L.S

1.2.2 Water Treatment Plant
1.2.2.1 Fine screening L.S
1.2.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.2.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.2.2.4 Filtration L.S
1.2.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.2.2.6 Treated Water Tank L.S
1.2.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.2.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.2.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.2.2.10 Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 

transformers
L.S

1.2.2.11 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.2.12 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) 
L.S

1.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, 
Workshop, Laboratory & Gatehouse) L.S

1.3 Control / Command Works 
1.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
1.3.2 Automation System L.S
1.3.3 Data network L.S
1.3.4 SCADA system L.S
1.3.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) L.S

Item Description
Foreign 

Currency  [1]
UnitCountry of Origin

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Total Price 
(Excl. VAT)

Custom Duties & 
Levies

CIP Price



Schedule No. 2: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied From Abroad

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Item Description
Foreign 

Currency  [1]
UnitCountry of Origin

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Total Price 
(Excl. VAT)

Custom Duties & 
Levies

CIP Price

1.4 Auxiliary Works 
1.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
1.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
1.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police 

station and clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) L.S
1.4.4 Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and 

RWPS L.S
1.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
1.4.6 Workshop Equipments L.S
1.4.7 Laboratory Equipments L.S
1.4.8 Handling equipments L.S
1.4.9 Ventilation systems L.S
1.4.10 Air-conditioning systems L.S
1.4.11 Telephone/ Communication systems L.S
1.4.12 Lightning protection systems L.S
1.4.13 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.14 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.15 General works (fencing, landscaping and street lighting, etc.)

L.S
1.4.16 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) L.S

1,5 Mandatory Spare Parts
1.5.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
1.5.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains L.S
1.5.3 Water Treatment Plant L.S

1,6
Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary 
for the satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S

b) L.S

Notes:
[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS

The amount quoted in this price schedule includes delivery to site, Contractor's overheads and profits.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)



Schedule No. 3: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied Within Employer's Country (Kenya)

1 2 3 4
1.1 Mechanical Works
1.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.1.1.1 Pumps L.S
1.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings L.S
1.1.1.4 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

1.1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains 
1.1.2.1 Pipes and Fittings L.S
1.1.2.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.2.3 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

1.1.3 Water Treatment Plant
1.1.3.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
1.1.3.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.1.3.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.1.3.4 Filtration L.S
1.1.3.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.1.3.6 Treated Water Tank L.S
1.1.3.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.1.3.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.1.3.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.1.3.10 Conveying system L.S
1.1.3.11 Auxiliary standby diesel engine generator to serve both the WTP and RWPS L.S
1.1.3.12 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

1.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, Workshop, Laboratory, 
Gatehouse etc.)

L.S

1.2 Electrical Works 
1.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.2.1.1 Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and transformers L.S
1.2.1.2 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.1.3 LV equipment connection L.S

1.2.2 Water Treatment Plant
1.2.2.1 Fine screening L.S
1.2.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.2.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.2.2.4 Filtration L.S
1.2.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.2.2.6 Treated Water Tank L.S
1.2.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.2.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.2.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.2.2.10 Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and transformers L.S
1.2.2.11 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.2.12 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

1.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, Workshop, Laboratory & 
Gatehouse)

L.S

1.3 Control / Command Works 
1.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
1.3.2 Automation System L.S
1.3.3 Data network L.S
1.3.4 SCADA system L.S
1.3.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price (Kshs.)
Exc. VAT

Item Description Unit



Schedule No. 3: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied Within Employer's Country (Kenya)

1 2 3 4

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price (Kshs.)
Exc. VAT

Item Description Unit

1.4 Auxiliary Works 
1.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
1.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
1.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police station and clinic (constructed 

under the Dam Contract) 
L.S

1.4.4 Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and RWPS L.S
1.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
1.4.6 Workshop Equipments L.S
1.4.7 Laboratory Equipments L.S
1.4.8 Handling equipments L.S
1.4.9 Ventilation systems L.S
1.4.10 Air-conditioning systems L.S
1.4.11 Telephone/ Communication systems L.S
1.4.12 Lightning protection systems L.S
1.4.13 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.14 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.15 General works (fencing, landscaping and street lighting, etc.) L.S
1.4.16 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

1,5 Mandatory Spare Parts
1.5.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
1.5.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains L.S
1.5.3 Water Treatment Plant L.S

1,6 Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for the satisfactory completion 
of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S

b) L.S

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)



Schedule No. 4: Construction Works and Installation Services

Local Currency Foreign Currency  Local Currency Foreign Currency
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station
1.1.1 Pump house L.S
1.1.2 Kenya Power metering room L.S
1.1.3 Workshop and Store L.S

1.1.4
Administration building (includes reception, plant manager's 
office, operator's office etc) L.S

1.1.5 Gate house L.S
1.1.6 Internal access roads including parking & drainage works L.S
1.1.7 Landscaping works including earthworks,drainage works, 

irrigation network,plating of trees, lawns & flowers, fencing and 
gates

L.S

1.1.8
Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) L.S

1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains. Item covers all pipeline construction 
works which includes but not limited to the following: earthworks, 
pipelaying and jointing, installation of pipeline fittings & 
appurtenances, inspection chambers,anchors, road crossings, 
testing & Commissioning etc. 

L.S

1.3 Water treatment plant
1.3.1 Head works (screening, Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock 

chlorination, pH Adjustment) L.S
1.3.2 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.3.3 Filters L.S
1.3.4 UV Building L.S
1.3.5 Treated Water Tank L.S
1.3.6 Backwash water Tank L.S
1.3.7 Sludge thickening L.S
1.3.8 Sludge drying beds L.S
1.3.9 Chemical storage and chlorination building L.S
1.3.10 Adminstration building,Including Laboratory L.S
1.3.11 Workshop and store L.S
1.3.12 Gate house L.S
1.3.13 Internal access roads including parking & drainage works L.S
1.3.14 WTP Access Road connecting WTP to Dam Access Road (refer to 

Drawings for Information Drg. No. ART-8773361-PD-DWG-401 L.S
1.3.15 Landscaping works including earthworks,drainage works, 

irrigation network,plating of trees, lawns & flowers, fencing and 
gates L.S

1.3.16 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) L.S

1,4 Water supply facilities from the WTP to the base camp, police 
station and clinic. Includes a pumping system and elevated RC tank 
as detailed in the Employer's requirements

L.S

2,1 Mechanical Works
2.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

2.1.1.1 Pumps L.S
2.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
2.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings L.S

2.1.1.4
Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) L.S

2.1.2 Water Treatment Plant
2.1.2.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
2.1.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
2.1.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
2.1.2.4 Filtration L.S
2.1.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
2.1.2.6 Treated Water Tank L.S
2.1.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
2.1.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
2.1.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
2.1.2.10 Conveying system L.S

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Item Description Unit
Price

(excluding VAT)

1. Civil Engineering and Building Works

2. Installation Services

Specify Curreny [1]



Schedule No. 4: Construction Works and Installation Services

Local Currency Foreign Currency  Local Currency Foreign Currency
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Item Description Unit
Price

(excluding VAT)

1. Civil Engineering and Building Works

Specify Curreny [1]

2.1.2.11 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

2.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP & RWPS - Includes Installation 
of Gantry Cranes in Workshops and other Mechanical Components 
in Ancillary Buildings

L.S



Schedule No. 4: Construction Works and Installation Services

Local Currency Foreign Currency  Local Currency Foreign Currency
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Item Description Unit
Price

(excluding VAT)

1. Civil Engineering and Building Works

Specify Curreny [1]

2,2 Electrical and Instrumentation Works 
2.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
2.2.2 Water Treatment Plant L.S
2.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP L.S
2.2.4 Ancillary Buildings within the RWPS L.S
2.2.5 Installation of the Auxiliary standby diesel engine generator L.S

2.2.6 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

2,3 SCADA Control / Command Works 
2.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
2.3.2 Automation System L.S
2.3.3 Data network includes optic fibre from the RWPS to WTP L.S
2.3.4 SCADA system L.S

2.3.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

2,4 Auxiliary Works 
2.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
2.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
2.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police station 

and clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) 
L.S

2.4.4
Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and RWPS

L.S

2.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
2.4.6 Workshop Equipments L.S
2.4.7 Handling equipments L.S
2.4.8 Ventilation systems L.S
2.4.9 Air-conditioning systems L.S
2.4.10 Telephone/ Communication systems L.S
2.4.11 Lightning protection systems L.S
2.4.12 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
2.4.13 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
2.4.14

All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

1,7
Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for 
the satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S
b) L.S

Sub-Total - 2

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)



Schedule No. 5A: Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule for Design and Build Part

Local 
Currency 

Foreign Currency  Local Currency Foreign Currency

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
ESHS 1 Resources allocated to ESHS management Clause 4 L.S

ESHS 2 Drafting and updating the ESHS documentation, 
reporting, inspections

Clauses 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 
7, 9

L.S

-       Accommodation L.S
-       Meals L.S
-       Transport L.S

ESHS 5 Training and local recruitment management costs 
(Includes Social Inclusion - Subclause 39.12)

Clauses 8, 39 L.S

ESHS 6 Protection of adjacent areas, biodiversity, 
prevention of erosion and wastewater management

Clauses 10, 11, 12, 
17, 18

L.S

ESHS 7 Traffic, noise and atmospheric emissions 
management, land take

Clauses 13, 14, 42, 
43, 44

L.S

ESHS 8 Waste and hazardous products management Clauses 15, 26 L.S

ESHS 9 Vegetation clearing and Site rehabilitation Clauses 16, 19, 20 L.S

Notes:

ESHS 3 Implementation of the Health and Safety 
Plan:Meetings, health care centre, medical 
check‑ups, emergencies and evacuations, safety 
protective equipment, hygiene

Clauses 1, 9, 21 to 
25, 27 to 35, 37, 38

L.S

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Item N° Description
ESHS Specifications 

Clause N°
Unit

Specify Currency[1] Price (exc. VAT)

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

ESHS costs are deemed to cover operations on all Sites (as defined in Clause 1.3 of ESHS Specifications).

Interim Payment Certificates shall include the portion of each ESHS cost amounting to the percentage of the actual progress achieved in executing the ESHS measures in compliance with the ESHS
Specifications and approved by the Employer's Representative.

The Bidder should refer to the ESHS Specifications - Part 2, Section 7.6 of the Bidding Documents

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for ensuring full 
commpliance (contractual and statutory) with Project ESHS Requirements.

Tenderer to detail:
a)

b)

ESHS 4 Accommodation, drinking water, meals and 
transportation of staff (The Bidder shall detail the 
financial conditions of the supply of 
accommodation, meals and transport to its staff):

Clauses 36, 40, 41



Schedule No. 5B: Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule for Operation Service

Local 
Currency 

Foreign 
Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
ESHS 1 Resources allocated to ESHS management Clause 4 L.S

ESHS 2 Drafting and updating the ESHS 
documentation, reporting, inspections

Clauses 1, 2, 3, 5, 
6, 7, 9 L.S

-       Accommodation L.S
-       Meals L.S
-       Transport L.S

ESHS 5 Training and local recruitment management 
costs (Includes Social Inclusion - Subclause 
39.12)

Clauses 8, 39
L.S

ESHS 6 Protection of adjacent areas, biodiversity, 
prevention of erosion and wastewater 
management

Clauses 10, 11, 12, 
17, 18 L.S

ESHS 7 Waste and hazardous products management Clauses 15, 26
L.S

Notes:

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Item N° Description
ESHS 

Specifications 
Clause N°

Unit
Amount (exc. VAT) 

Local Currency 
Amount (exc. VAT) 
Foreign Currency

ESHS 3 Implementation of the Health and Safety 
Plan:Meetings, health care centre, medical 
check‑ups, emergencies and evacuations, 
safety protective equipment, hygiene

Clauses 1, 9, 21 to 
25, 27 to 35, 37, 38

L.S

ESHS costs are deemed to cover operations on all Sites (as defined in Clause 1.3 of ESHS Specifications).

Interim Payment Certificates shall include the portion of each ESHS cost amounting to the percentage of the actual progress achieved in executing the ESHS measures in compliance
with the ESHS Specifications and approved by the Employer's Representative.

The Bidder should refer to the ESHS Specifications - Part 2, Section 7.6 of the Bidding Documents

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for ensuring full 
commpliance (contractual and statutory) with Project ESHS Requirements.

Tenderer to detail:
a)

b)

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

ESHS 4 Accommodation, drinking water, meals and 
transportation of staff (The Bidder shall detail 
the financial conditions of the supply of 
accommodation, meals and transport to its 
staff):

Clauses 36, 40, 41

Specify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 6: Security Cost Schedule

Local 
Currency 

Foreign 
Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Security 1 Security organisation Article 4.1 L.S

Security 2
Travel within the country and to the 
relevant area

Article 4.2 L.S

Security 3 Accommodation during assignments Article 4.3 L.S

Security 4
Accommodation and security on project 
sites and worksites

Article 4.4 L.S

Security 5 Communication Article 4.5 L.S

Other
This price may remunerate all the other 
services described in Articles 1 to 3 of 
the Security Specifications.

Articles 1 to 3, 5
to 6

L.S

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

Price N° Category Title
Reference of 

Security 
Specifications

Price (exc. VAT) 
Foreign Currency 

Unit
Price (exc. VAT) 
Local Currency 

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Specify Currency[1]

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

The prices include all activities and measures defined in the security specifications and correspond to additional costs compared to an environment without security risk.

A breakdown of security price items shall be included in the Bid.



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule A - Labor

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

A.1 Working Gang hr 200

A.2 Craftsman (joiner/steel fixer etc) hr 400

A.3
Semi-skilled workman (Plant
operator/pipelayer etc.)

hr 1000

A.4 Unskilled labourer hr 1000

A.5 Technical Staff / Engineer hr 200

A.6 Electrician hr 100

A.7 Unskilled labourer hr 400

A.8 Short term expert day 60

Civil Engineering

Mechanical / Electrical

Technical Assistance

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
The rates inserted herein should include for all costs such as insurance, travelling time, overtime, accomondation, use and maintenance of small tools of trade, 
supervisions, overheads and profit. Ony time engaged upon work will be paid.

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

UnitDescriptionItem N°

Price
(excluding VAT)Provisional 

Quantity

Specify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule B - Materials

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

B.1 Ordinary Portland Cement Tonne 2

B.2
Mild steel (any size from 8mm to 25mm 
dia.) Kg 400

B.3 High tensile steel ( 8mm to 25mm dia.)
Kg

100

B.4 Fine aggregate for concrete Tonne 2

B.5 Coarse aggregate for concrete Tonne 2

B.6 Use of shuttering timber m2 20

B.7 Murram / Gravel m3 40

B.8 Concrete Class 15/20 m3 50

B.9 Concrete Class 20/25 m3 50

B.10 Concrete Class 30/37 m3 50

B.11 150mm thick stone/concrete Blocks Nr. 400

B.12 225mm thick stone/concrete Blocks Nr. 400

B.13 Formwork Class F3 (fair face) m2 150

B.14 Formwork Class F1 (rough) m2 150

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
All materials are to comply with the specifications. The rates inserted herein are to include for delivery to site, storage, 
handling, overheads and profits.

Item 
N°

Description Unit
Provisional 

Quantity

Specify Currency[1]

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price
(excluding VAT)



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule C - Contractor's Equipment

Local Currency Foreign Currency
Local Currency 

KES
Foreign Currency  

[1]…..............

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C.1
Air Compressor up to 14m3/min including hoses 
free air delivery 7kg/cm2

hr 80

C.2
Concrete mixer, closed drum with hopper wet
capacity up to 200 litres

hr 40

C.3 Vibrator poker air (excluding compressor) hr 60

C.4
Crane, crawler mounted, maximum safe working
load:

C.4a up to 36 tonnes hr 40
C.4b Up to 75 tonnes hr 20
C.5 Concrete skip for crane, struck capacity:

C.5a Upto 0.6m3 hr 20
C.5b Up to 1.2m3 hr 20

C.6 Dumper two wheel drive, makers rated payload:

C.6a Up to 1500Kg hr 100
C.6b Up to 5,000Kg hr 100

C.7
Rear dump truck, makers rated payload up to 17
tonnes

hr 20

C.8
Articluated dump truck, makers rated payload up
to 18.5 tonnes

hr 20

C.9
Excavator mounted percussion breaker, unit
weight less cradle:

C.9a Up to 100Kg hr 20
C.9b Up to 1000Kg hr 20

C.10
Excavator, hydraullic full circle slew crawler or
wheel mounted with single equipment, makers
raed nominal weight:

C.10a Up to 2 tonnes hr 20
C.10b Up to 14 tonnes hr 20
C.10c Up to 21 tonnes hr 60
C.10d Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.10e Up to 55 tonnes hr 20

C.11

Excavator, hydraullic, offset or centre post, half
circle slew, wheeled dual purpose back
hoe/loader,makers rated loader bucket capacity
up to 1.1m3

hr 100

C.12 Generator set, nomial rating:
C.12a Up to 10kVA hr 30
C.12b Up to 25kVA hr 30
C.13 Transformer, (air cooled nominal rating): hr 30

C.13a Up to 10kVA hr 30
C.13b Up to 25kVA hr 30
C.14 Lorry maximum gross vehicle weight:

C.14a Up to 12 tonnes hr 20
C.14b Up to 17 tonnes hr 20
C.14c Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.15 Lorry, tipper, maximum gross vehicle weight:

C.15a Up to 12 tonnes hr 40
C.15b Up to 17 tonnes hr 20
C.15c Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.16 Van or pick-up, carrying capacity:

C.16a Up to 1 tonne hr 40
C.16b Up to 2 tonne hr 40
C.17 Vibrating rammer, nominal weight up to 60Kg hr 20
C.18 Vibrating plate compactor, nominal weight :

C.18a Up to 80 Kg hr 40
C.18b Up to 150 Kg hr 40
C.19 Pneumatic tools: breaker including steel hr 60

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
The rates inserted herein should include for all operational and maintenance costs, fuel, oil, grease, operators, turnboys, supervision, overheads and 
profits. Only the time actually employed on works will be paid for and the rates should include for idle, travelling and overtime.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Provisional 
Quantity

UnitDescriptionItem N°

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Total Price - exc. VATSpecify Currency



Schedule No. 8: Operation Service [1] [2]

Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9=5*4 10=6*4 11=7*4 12=8*4

1.1 Fixed costs
1.1.1 Operation & Maintenance staff

1.1.1.1 Plant Manager man-month 12
1.1.1.2 Water Treatment Process Engineer man-month 12
1.1.1.3 Mechanical Engineer man-month 12
1.1.1.4 Electrical Engineer man-month 12
1.1.1.5 Lab technician man-month 12
1.1.1.6 Any other Staff not described above, but deemed necessary to operate and 

maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.1.2 Maintenance & Repair

1.1.2.1 Civil works month 12
1.1.2.2 Equipment month 12

1.1.3 Cost for electrical power provision month 12
1.1.4 Cost for gas provision month 12
1.1.5 Cost for fuel provision month 12
1.1.6 Cost for chemical provision month 12
1.1.7 Water analyses, laboratory month 12
1.1.8 Utilities and other costs month 12
1.1.9 Any other O&M item not described above, but deemed necessary to operate and 

maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.2 Variables costs (for 12 months)

1.2.1 Chemical consumption
1.2.1.1 Potassium permanganate tonnes
1.2.1.2 Aluminium slufate tonnes
1.2.1.3 Polyelectrolyte tonnes
1.2.1.4 Acid tonnes
1.2.1.5 NaOH tonnes
1.2.1.6 NaOCl tonnes
1.2.1.7 Other chemicals not described above, but deemed necessary to operate and 

maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.2.2 Other consumables

1.2.2.1 Lubricants month 12
1.2.2.2 Laboratory reagents month 12
1.2.2.3 Laboratory Glasswere month 12
1.2.2.4 Activated carbon month 12
1.2.2.5 Other consumables month 12

1.2.3 Electricity power consumption
1.2.3.1 Electricity power consumption for the RWPS [3] kWh
1.2.3.2 Electricity power consumption for the WTP kWh
1.2.4 Gas power consumption Nm3
1.2.5 Fuel power consumption Liters
1.2.7 Utilities and other costs month 12

1.2.8
Any other O&M item not described above, but deemed necessary to operate and 
maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:

Notes:
[1]  Financial evaluation will be done based on theoretical raw water quality and water level at Mwache dam as mentioned in the Employer's requirements and answers to clarifications. Bidders shall provide details of calculation for variable costs consumption. 
[2] During the O&M period, Contractor shall be paid based on the actual chemical and electrical consumption
[3] Electrical consumption at the RWPS shall be calculated based on the following assumptions: 
- For 20% of the time: operation level of the dam of 50.0 masl
- For 50% of the time: operation Level of the dam of 70.0 masl
- For 30% of the time: operational level of the dam of 80.0 masl

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Total price exc. VAT
in foreign Currency

[1]…............

Total price exc. VAT
in local Currency
[1]…..................

Sub-Total 

Item No Description Unit Qty

Unit price exc. VAT
in foreign Currency

[1]…..................

Unit price exc. VAT
in local Currency

KES



Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary

1 Preliminary Items

2
Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied 
From Abroad

3
Equipment, Materials, Tools and mandatory Spare Parts supplied from 
within the Employer's country (Kenya)

4 Construction Works and Installation Services

5A
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Design and Build 
part

6 Security Cost

7 Dayworks

7A Labor

7B Materials

7C Contractor's Equipment

Sum of 
(1) to (7)

Sub-total 1

10% Contingencies (Provisional) (10% of Sub-total 1 above)

Sub-total 2 (for the Design-Build of the Works, to be also included in 
the Bid Submission Form - Bid Price): Sub-total 1 + Contingencies

5B Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Operation part

8 Operation Service 

Sub-total 3 for the Operation Service, to be also included in the Bid 
Submission Form - Bid Price (Sub-total 3 = 5B+8)
TOTAL (Sub-total 2 + Sub-total 3) to be also included in the Bid
Submission Form - Bid Price

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

GRAND TOTAL (INCL. OF ALL TAXES) 

Value Added Tax (VAT) - 16%, to be also included in the Bid Submission Form - 
Bid Price

Schedule 
No.

Title
Amounts - exc. VAT

Local Currency 
KES

Foreign Currency 
[1]….................



Schedule No. 10: Provisional Sums

No. Item Description Unit Amount (Kshs.)

10,1 Provisional Sum for the Employer's share of the Dispute Board P.S           10 000 000,00 

10,2 Provisional sum for procurement of Vehicles for the Engineer / 
Employer

P.S           95 000 000,00 

10,3 Provisional sum for Operation and Maintenance of Vehicles for the 
Engineer / Employer including cost for fueling, insurance etc.

P.S           65 000 000,00 

10,4 Provisional sum for Accommodation, Office Consumables / Expenses 
and Telephone for the Supervision Staff

P.S           30 000 000,00 

10,5 Provisional sum for Inspection and Witness Testing of Pipes, Fittings, 
Valves and Other Equipment at manufacturer's premises

P.S           20 000 000,00 

10,6 Provisional Sum to cover costs of the Employer's Counterpart Staff 
assigned to the Project including transport, communication, allowances, 
etc.

P.S           20 000 000,00 

10,7 Provisional Sum to cover costs of Interns and Attachees assigned to the 
Project.

P.S           15 000 000,00 

10,8 Provisional Sum to be used as directed by the Employer / Engineer P.S           40 000 000,00 

10,9 Provisional Sum to cover costs of On-site and Off-site Training of 
Employer's Staff 

P.S         130 000 000,00 

10,10 Provisional Sum to cover costs for procurement of specialised tools for 
Operation of the Treatment Plant and Raw Water Pumping Station

P.S           75 000 000,00 

10,11 Provisional Sum to cover costs for the electric connection line from the 
HV/MV electric Sub-station (within Dam Area) to the WTP and RWPS. 

P.S           15 000 000,00 

10,12 Provisional Sum to cover the cost for procurement of computers, 
including 3-year licenses for requisite engineering softwares, for the 
Engineer's Staff - 

P.S           10 000 000,00 

Sub-Total         525 000 000,00 

10,13 Tenderer's Overheads and Profits for Provisonal costs above 10%           52 500 000,00 

577 500 000,00       TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO SCHEDULE No. 1, ITEM 1.18

Price Schedules - FIRM PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 



Annex C (2) - Prices Schedules_Conditional_Part 



1

2

3

4

5 The following abbreviations are used:

L=Litres

Nm3=Normal Cubic Meter

6

hr= Hour

m2 = square metre

Nr. = Number

kWh = Kilowatt Hour

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

The Price Schedules shall be read in conjunction with the other documents forming part of this Contract in 
particular with the priced Activity Schedule prepared by the Bidder. The Price Schedules shall be submitted also on 
electronic format.

The total amount of the Price Schedules shall be carried to the Letter of Bid.

Notwithstanding any limits which may be implied by the wording of the individual activities and/or the explanations 
in this Preamble, it is to be clearly understood that the amounts entered in the Price Schedules are to be for the 
work finished, complete in every respect; and will be deemed to have taken full account of all requirements and 
obligations, whether expressed or implied, covered by all parts of this Contract and to have priced the activities 
herein accordingly.  The amounts must therefore include for temporary works, all incidental and contingent 
expenses and risks of every kind necessary to design, construct, complete and maintain the whole of the Works in 
accordance with the Contract.  Unless separate items are provided in the Price Schedules, full allowance shall be 
made in the sums stated for all works and costs involved. The prices shown in the price schedules will include all 
taxes and customs, import duties, levies but exclusive of VAT for a proper evaluation. However, the bidder to clearly 
indicate the VAT amounts in the summary.

It will be assumed that any activity or item left without a price entered against it, has the price of that activity or 
item included elsewhere in the Price Schedules.  After the award of contract no alteration will be made to the Price 
Schedules to rectify any “un-priced” activities or items.

Preamble 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Nm3 = Normal cubic meter
The prices stated in the Price Schedules shall exclude VAT and shall include all customs duties, import taxes, 
business taxes,  income and other taxes that may be levied on Goods and services according to the laws and 
regulations being in force in Kenya on the date 28 days prior to the date of submission of the Bids. 

L.S = Lump Sum
P.S. = Provisional Sum
T = tonne
Kg = Kilogramme

mg = milligram
mm = millimetre

h or hr = hour
m3 = cubic metre

d or day = day



Schedule No. 1: Preliminary Items

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1.1 Mobilisation cost including site preparation L.S

1.2
Establishment and maintenance of Contractor's office and 
accommodation

L.S

1.3
Establishment and maintenance of fully furnished and 
equiped Offices for the Engineer including provision of all 
utilities.

L.S

1.4
Engineer's Support Staff including basic pay, overtime, 
house allowance, per diems and other allowances.

L.S

1.5 Guarantees L.S

1.6 Insurances L.S

1.7 Topographical survey

1.8
Geotechnical investigations including additional studies 
for soil native characteristics

1.9
Obtaining of approvals and permissions prior to the 
commencement of construction.

1.10 Design of All the Project Works

1.11 Preparation and submission of “As-built” Drawings L.S

1.12
Preparation of Quality Assurance and Quality Control Plan 
and compliance with the QC/QA requirements

L.S

1.13
Preparation and submission of Operation and 
Maintenance documents and manuals

L.S

1.14 Pre-commissioning tests L.S

1.15 Commissioning Tests L.S

1.16 Tests on completion L.S

1.17 Demobilisation and removal of Contractor’s Camps L.S

Provisional Sums

1,18 Provisional Sums (fixed price) - Refer to Schedule No. 10

Any other items not described above, but deemed 
necessary for the satisfactory completion of the works.

Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S

b) L.S

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

1,19

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Item Description Unit

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Specify Curreny[1]

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Price [1]
(excluding VAT)



Schedule No. 2: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied From Abroad

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1.1 Mechanical Works
1.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.1.1.1 Pumps L.S
1.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings L.S

1.1.1.4
Any other necessary items required to complete the works 
(to detail) L.S

1.1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains 
1.1.2.1 Pipes and Fittings
1.1.2.2 Valves and Accessories

1.1.2.3
Any other necessary items required to complete the works 
(to detail) 

1.1.3 Water Treatment Plant
1.1.3.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S

1.1.3.2
Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH 
Adjustment L.S

1.1.3.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.1.3.4 Filtration L.S
1.1.3.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.1.3.6 Treated Water Tank
1.1.3.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.1.3.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.1.3.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.1.3.10 Conveying system L.S

1.1.3.11
All other necessary items required to complete the 
works (to detail) L.S

1.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, 
Workshop, Laboratory, Gatehouse etc.)

1.2 Electrical Works 
1.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.2.1.1
Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 
transformers

1.2.1.2 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.1.3 LV equipment connection L.S

1.2.2 Water Treatment Plant
1.2.2.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S

1.2.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.2.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.2.2.4 Filtration L.S
1.2.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.2.2.6 Treated Water Tank
1.2.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.2.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.2.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S

1.2.2.10
Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 
transformers

1.2.2.11 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S

1.2.2.12
All other necessary items required to complete the works 
(to detail) L.S

1.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration 
Building, Workshop, Laboratory & Gatehouse)

1.3 Control / Command Works 
1.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
1.3.2 Automation System L.S
1.3.3 Data network L.S
1.3.4 SCADA system 
1.3.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) L.S

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Item Description
Country of 

Origin
Unit

Foreign 
Currency  [1]

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Total Price 
(Excl. VAT)

Custom Duties & 
Levies

CIP Price

Included in Firm Part



Schedule No. 2: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied From Abroad

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Item Description
Country of 

Origin
Unit

Foreign 
Currency  [1]

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Total Price 
(Excl. VAT)

Custom Duties & 
Levies

CIP Price

1.4 Auxiliary Works 
1.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
1.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
1.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police 

station and clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) 
1.4.4 Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and 

RWPS
L.S

1.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
1.4.6 Workshop Equipments 
1.4.7 Laboratory Equipments 
1.4.8 Handling equipments 
1.4.9 Ventilation systems L.S
1.4.10 Air-conditioning systems L.S
1.4.11 Telephone/ Communication systems L.S
1.4.12 Lightning protection systems L.S
1.4.13 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.14 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.15

General works (fencing, landscaping and street lighting, etc.)
L.S

1.4.16 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

L.S

1,5 Mandatory Spare Parts
1.5.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
1.5.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains
1.5.3 Water Treatment Plant L.S

1,6
Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary 
for the satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a) L.S

b) L.S

Notes:
[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS

The amount quoted in this price schedule includes delivery to site, Contractor's overheads and profits.

Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part



Schedule No. 3: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied Within Employer's Country (Kenya)

1 2 3 4
1.1 Mechanical Works
1.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.1.1.1 Pumps L.S
1.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories L.S
1.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings L.S
1.1.1.4 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 

detail) L.S
1.1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains 

1.1.2.1 Pipes and Fittings
1.1.2.2 Valves and Accessories
1.1.2.3

Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
1.1.3 Water Treatment Plant

1.1.3.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
1.1.3.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.1.3.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.1.3.4 Filtration L.S
1.1.3.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.1.3.6 Treated Water Tank
1.1.3.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.1.3.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.1.3.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
1.1.3.10 Conveying system L.S
1.1.3.11

All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

1.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, 
Workshop, Laboratory, Gatehouse etc.)

1.2 Electrical Works 
1.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 

1.2.1.1 Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 
transformers

1.2.1.2 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S
1.2.1.3 LV equipment connection L.S

1.2.2 Water Treatment Plant
1.2.2.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
1.2.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
1.2.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.2.2.4 Filtration L.S
1.2.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S
1.2.2.6 Treated Water Tank
1.2.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
1.2.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
1.2.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S

1.2.2.10
Main power supply (high voltage or Medium Voltage) and 
transformers

1.2.2.11 Electrical room, main low voltage board, LV boards L.S

1.2.2.12
All other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

L.S

1.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP (Administration Building, 
Workshop, Laboratory & Gatehouse)

1.3 Control / Command Works 
1.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
1.3.2 Automation System L.S
1.3.3 Data network L.S
1.3.4 SCADA system 
1.3.5

All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

Included in Firm Part

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price (Kshs)
Exc. VAT

Item Description Unit

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part



Schedule No. 3: Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied Within Employer's Country (Kenya)

1 2 3 4

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price (Kshs)
Exc. VAT

Item Description Unit

1.4 Auxiliary Works 
1.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
1.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
1.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police station 

and clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) 
1.4.4

Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and RWPS
L.S

1.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
1.4.6 Workshop Equipments 
1.4.7 Laboratory Equipments 
1.4.8 Handling equipments 
1.4.9 Ventilation systems L.S
1.4.10 Air-conditioning systems L.S
1.4.11 Telephone/ Communication systems L.S
1.4.12 Lightning protection systems L.S
1.4.13 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.14 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
1.4.15 General works (fencing, landscaping and street lighting, etc.) L.S
1.4.16

All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

1,5 Mandatory Spare Parts
1.5.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
1.5.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains
1.5.3 Water Treatment Plant L.S

1,6 Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for 
the satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a)

b)

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Included in Firm Part



Schedule No. 4: Construction Works and Installation Services

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station
1.1.1 Pump house
1.1.2 Kenya Power metering room
1.1.3 Workshop and Store

1.1.4
Administration building (includes reception, plant manager's 
office, operator's office etc)

1.1.5 Gate house
1.1.6 Internal access roads including parking & drainage works

1.1.7

Landscaping works including earthworks,drainage works, 
irrigation network,plating of trees, lawns & flowers, fencing and 
gates

1.1.8
Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

1.2 Raw Water Pumping Mains. Item covers all pipeline construction 
works which includes but not limited to the following: 
earthworks, pipelaying and jointing, installation of pipeline 
fittings & appurtenances, inspection chambers,anchors, road 
crossings, testing & Commissioning etc. 

1.3 Water treatment plant
1.3.1 Head works (screening, Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock 

chlorination, pH Adjustment) L.S
1.3.2 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
1.3.3 Filters L.S
1.3.4 UV Building L.S
1.3.5 Treated Water Tank
1.3.6 Backwash water Tank L.S
1.3.7 Sludge thickening L.S
1.3.8 Sludge drying beds L.S
1.3.9 Chemical storage and chlorination building
1.3.10 Adminstration building,Including Laboratory
1.3.11 Workshop and store
1.3.12 Gate house
1.3.13 Internal access roads including parking & drainage works L.S
1.3.14 Landscaping works including earthworks,drainage works, 

irrigation network,plating of trees, lawns & flowers, fencing and 
gates

1.3.15 Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

L.S

1,4 Water supply facilities from the WTP to the base camp, police 
station and clinic. Includes a pumping system and elevated RC 
tank as detailed in the Employer's requirements

2,1 Mechanical Works

2.1.1 Raw Water Pumping Station 
2.1.1.1 Pumps
2.1.1.2 Valves and Accessories
2.1.1.3 Pipes and Fittings

2.1.1.4
Any other necessary items required to complete the works (to 
detail) 

2.1.2 Water Treatment Plant
2.1.2.1 Pre-treatment (if necessary) L.S
2.1.2.2 Aeration, pre-oxidation, shock chlorination, pH Adjustment L.S
2.1.2.3 Coagulation, Flocculation, Clarification L.S
2.1.2.4 Filtration L.S
2.1.2.5 Calco-carbonic balance and final disinfection L.S

2.1.2.6 Treated Water Tank
2.1.2.7 Backwash Tank L.S
2.1.2.8 Sludge thickening and recycling system L.S
2.1.2.9 Chemical storage, preparation and dosing L.S
2.1.2.10 Conveying system L.S

2.1.2.11 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Item Description Unit
Price

(excluding VAT)

1. Civil Engineering and Building Works

2. Installation Services

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part

Specify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 4: Construction Works and Installation Services

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Item Description Unit
Price

(excluding VAT)

1. Civil Engineering and Building Works

Specify Currency[1]

2.1.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP & RWPS - Includes Installation 
of Gantry Cranes in Workshops and other Mechanical 
Components in Ancillary Buildings

2,2 Electrical and Instrumentation Works 
2.2.1 Raw Water Pumping Station L.S
2.2.2 Water Treatment Plant L.S

2.2.3 Ancillary Buildings within the WTP 

2.2.4 Ancillary Buildings within the RWPS

2.2.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

2,3 SCADA Control / Command Works 
2.3.1 Instrumentation L.S
2.3.2 Automation System L.S
2.3.3 Data network L.S
2.3.4 SCADA system L.S

2.3.5 All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) L.S

2,4 Auxiliary Works 
2.4.1 Fire detection , alarm system  and fire fighting system L.S
2.4.2 Water supply system within WTP and RWPS L.S
2.4.3 Potable water system / facilities for the base camp, police station 

and clinic (constructed under the Dam Contract) L.S
2.4.4

Wastewater collection & treatment systems within WTP and RWPS L.S
2.4.5 Rain water Collection and Storage System L.S
2.4.6 Workshop Equipments 
2.4.7 Handling equipments 
2.4.8 Ventilation systems L.S
2.4.9 Air-conditioning systems L.S
2.4.10 Telephone/ Communication systems
2.4.11 Lightning protection systems L.S
2.4.12 Anti-intrusion security alarm system (WTP and RWPS) L.S
2.4.13 CCTV security System (WTP and RWPS) L.S
2.4.14

All other necessary items required to complete the works (to detail) 
L.S

1,7
Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for 
the satisfactory completion of the works.
Tenderer to detail:
a)
b)

Sub-Total - 2

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part

Included in Firm Part
Included in Firm Part

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Included in Firm Part



Schedule No. 5A: Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule for Design and Build Part

Local 
Currency 

Foreign 
Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
ESHS 1 Resources allocated to ESHS management

Clause 4 L.S

ESHS 2 Drafting and updating the ESHS 
documentation, reporting, inspections

Clauses 1, 2, 3, 5, 
6, 7, 9

L.S

-       Accommodation L.S
-       Meals L.S
-       Transport L.S

ESHS 5
Training and local recruitment management 
costs (Includes Social Inclusion - Subclause 
39.12)

Clauses 8, 39 L.S

ESHS 6
Protection of adjacent areas, biodiversity, 
prevention of erosion and wastewater 
management

Clauses 10, 11, 12, 
17, 18

L.S

ESHS 7
Traffic, noise and atmospheric emissions 
management, land take

Clauses 13, 14, 42, 
43, 44

L.S

ESHS 8 Waste and hazardous products management Clauses 15, 26 L.S

ESHS 9 Vegetation clearing and Site rehabilitation Clauses 16, 19, 20 L.S

Notes:

ESHS costs are deemed to cover operations on all Sites (as defined in Clause 1.3 of ESHS Specifications).

Interim Payment Certificates shall include the portion of each ESHS cost amounting to the percentage of the actual progress achieved in executing the ESHS measures in compliance
with the ESHS Specifications and approved by the Employer's Representative.

Implementation of the Health and Safety 
Plan:Meetings, health care centre, medical 
check‑ups, emergencies and evacuations, 
safety protective equipment, hygiene

Clauses 1, 9, 21 to 
25, 27 to 35, 37, 38

L.S

The Bidder should refer to the ESHS Specifications - Part 2, Section 7.6 of the Bidding Documents

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for ensuring full 
commpliance (contractual and statutory) with Project ESHS Requirements.

Tenderer to detail:
a)

b)

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

ESHS 4 Accommodation, drinking water, meals and 
transportation of staff (The Bidder shall detail 
the financial conditions of the supply of 
accommodation, meals and transport to its 
staff):

Clauses 36, 40, 41

ESHS 3

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Item N° Description
ESHS 

Specifications 
Clause N°

Unit
Price (exc. VAT) 
Local Currency 

Price (exc. VAT) 
Foreign Currency

Specify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 5B: Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule for Operation Service

Local 
Currency 

Foreign 
Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
ESHS 1 Resources allocated to ESHS management Clause 4 L.S

ESHS 2 Drafting and updating the ESHS 
documentation, reporting, inspections

Clauses 1, 2, 3, 5, 
6, 7, 9

L.S

-       Accommodation L.S
-       Meals L.S
-       Transport L.S

ESHS 5
Training and local recruitment management 
costs (Includes Social Inclusion - Subclause 
39.12)

Clauses 8, 39 L.S

ESHS 6
Protection of adjacent areas, biodiversity, 
prevention of erosion and wastewater 
management

Clauses 10, 11, 12, 
17, 18

L.S

ESHS 7 Waste and hazardous products management Clauses 15, 26 L.S

Notes:

ESHS costs are deemed to cover operations on all Sites (as defined in Clause 1.3 of ESHS Specifications).

Interim Payment Certificates shall include the portion of each ESHS cost amounting to the percentage of the actual progress achieved in executing the ESHS measures in compliance
with the ESHS Specifications and approved by the Employer's Representative.

The Bidder should refer to the ESHS Specifications - Part 2, Section 7.6 of the Bidding Documents

Any other items not described above, but deemed necessary for ensuring full 
commpliance (contractual and statutory) with Project ESHS Requirements.

Tenderer to detail:
a)

b)

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

ESHS 3 Implementation of the Health and Safety 
Plan:Meetings, health care centre, medical 
check‑ups, emergencies and evacuations, 
safety protective equipment, hygiene

Clauses 1, 9, 21 to 
25, 27 to 35, 37, 38

L.S

ESHS 4 Accommodation, drinking water, meals and 
transportation of staff (The Bidder shall detail 
the financial conditions of the supply of 
accommodation, meals and transport to its 
staff):

Clauses 36, 40, 41

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Item N° Description
ESHS 

Specifications 
Clause N°

Unit
Price (exc. VAT) 
Local Currency 

Price (exc. VAT) 
Foreign Currency 

Specify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 6: Security Cost Schedule

Local 
Currency 

Foreign 
Currency  

1 2 3 4 5 6

Security 1 Security organisation Article 4.1 L.S

Security 2
Travel within the country and to the 
relevant area

Article 4.2 L.S

Security 3 Accommodation during assignments Article 4.3 L.S

Security 4
Accommodation and security on project 
sites and worksites

Article 4.4 L.S

Security 5 Communication Article 4.5 L.S

Other
This price may remunerate all the other 
services described in Articles 1 to 3 of 
the Security Specifications.

Articles 1 to 3, 5
to 6

L.S

[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

Price N° Category Title
Reference of 

Security 
Specifications

Price (exc. VAT) 
Foreign Currency 

Unit
Price (exc. VAT) 
Local Currency  

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Specify Currency[1]

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

The prices include all activities and measures defined in the security specifications and correspond to additional costs compared to an environment without security risk.

A breakdown of security price items shall be included in the Bid.



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule A - Labor

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency

A.1 Working Gang hr 200

A.2 Craftsman (joiner/steel fixer etc) hr 400

A.3
Semi-skilled workman (Plant
operator/pipelayer etc.)

hr 1000

A.4 Unskilled labourer hr 1000

A.5 Technical Staff / Engineer hr 200

A.6 Electrician hr 100

A.7 Unskilled labourer hr 400

A.8 Short term expert day 60

Civil Engineering

Mechanical / Electrical

Technical Assistance

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
The rates inserted herein should include for all costs such as insurance, travelling time, overtime, accomondation, use and maintenance of small tools of trade, 
supervisions, overheads and profit. Ony time engaged upon work will be paid.

Included in Firm Part

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

UnitDescriptionItem N°
Provisional 

Quantity

Specify Currency[1] Price - exc. VAT



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule B - Materials

Local Currency Foreign Currency  Local Currency Foreign Currency 

B.1 Ordinary Portland Cement Tonne 2

B.2
Mild steel (any size from 8mm to 25mm 
dia.) Kg 400

B.3 High tensile steel ( 8mm to 25mm dia.)
Kg

100

B.4 Fine aggregate for concrete Tonne 2

B.5 Coarse aggregate for concrete Tonne 2

B.6 Use of shuttering timber m2 20

B.7 Murram / Gravel m3 40

B.8 Concrete Class 15/20 m3 50

B.9 Concrete Class 20/25 m3 50

B.10 Concrete Class 30/37 m3 50

B.11 150mm thick stone/concrete Blocks Nr. 400

B.12 225mm thick stone/concrete Blocks Nr. 400

B.13 Formwork Class F3 (fair face) m2 150

B.14 Formwork Class F1 (rough) m2 150

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
All materials are to comply with the specifications. The rates inserted herein are to include for delivery to site, storage, 
handling, overheads and profits.

Item 
N°

Description Unit
Provisional 

Quantity

Included in Firm Part

Specify Currency[1]

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price
(excluding VAT)



Schedule No. 7: Dayworks

Schedule C - Contractor's Equipment

Local Currency Foreign Currency Local Currency Foreign Currency 

C.1
Air Compressor up to 14m3/min including hoses 
free air delivery 7kg/cm2

hr 80

C.2
Concrete mixer, closed drum with hopper wet
capacity up to 200 litres

hr 40

C.3 Vibrator poker air (excluding compressor) hr 60

C.4
Crane, crawler mounted, maximum safe working
load:

C.4a up to 36 tonnes hr 40
C.4b Up to 75 tonnes hr 20
C.5 Concrete skip for crane, struck capacity:

C.5a Upto 0.6m3 hr 20
C.5b Up to 1.2m3 hr 20

C.6 Dumper two wheel drive, makers rated payload:

C.6a Up to 1500Kg hr 100
C.6b Up to 5,000Kg hr 100

C.7
Rear dump truck, makers rated payload up to 17
tonnes

hr 20

C.8
Articluated dump truck, makers rated payload up
to 18.5 tonnes

hr 20

C.9
Excavator mounted percussion breaker, unit
weight less cradle:

C.9a Up to 100Kg hr 20
C.9b Up to 1000Kg hr 20

C.10
Excavator, hydraullic full circle slew crawler or
wheel mounted with single equipment, makers
raed nominal weight:

C.10a Up to 2 tonnes hr 20
C.10b Up to 14 tonnes hr 20
C.10c Up to 21 tonnes hr 60
C.10d Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.10e Up to 55 tonnes hr 20

C.11

Excavator, hydraullic, offset or centre post, half
circle slew, wheeled dual purpose back
hoe/loader,makers rated loader bucket capacity
up to 1.1m3

hr 100

C.12 Generator set, nomial rating:
C.12a Up to 10kVA hr 30
C.12b Up to 25kVA hr 30
C.13 Transformer, (air cooled nominal rating): hr 30

C.13a Up to 10kVA hr 30
C.13b Up to 25kVA hr 30
C.14 Lorry maximum gross vehicle weight:

C.14a Up to 12 tonnes hr 20
C.14b Up to 17 tonnes hr 20
C.14c Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.15 Lorry, tipper, maximum gross vehicle weight:

C.15a Up to 12 tonnes hr 40
C.15b Up to 17 tonnes hr 20
C.15c Up to 30 tonnes hr 20
C.16 Van or pick-up, carrying capacity:

C.16a Up to 1 tonne hr 40
C.16b Up to 2 tonne hr 40
C.17 Vibrating rammer, nominal weight up to 60Kg hr 20
C.18 Vibrating plate compactor, nominal weight :

C.18a Up to 80 Kg hr 40
C.18b Up to 150 Kg hr 40
C.19 Pneumatic tools: breaker including steel hr 60

Notes:
[1]  Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.
The rates inserted herein should include for all operational and maintenance costs, fuel, oil, grease, operators, turnboys, supervision, overheads and 
profits. Only the time actually employed on works will be paid for and the rates should include for idle, travelling and overtime.

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Provisional 
Quantity

UnitDescription
Item 

N°

Included in Firm Part

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Price - exc. VATSpecify Currency[1]



Schedule No. 8: Operation Service [1] [2] - Shall correspond to the final capacity of the plant (firm + conditional parts)

Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment Civil works Equipment
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9=5*4 10=6*4 11=7*4 12=8*4

1.1 Fixed costs
1.1.1 Operation & Maintenance staff

1.1.1.1 Plant Manager man-month 24
1.1.1.2 Water Treatment Process Engineer man-month 24
1.1.1.3 Mechanical Engineer man-month 24
1.1.1.4 Electrical Engineer man-month 24
1.1.1.5 Lab technician man-month 24
1.1.1.6 Any other Staff not described above, but deemed necessary to 

operate and maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.1.2 Maintenance & Repair

1.1.2.1 Civil works month 24
1.1.2.2 Equipment month 24

1.1.3 Cost for electrical power provision month 24
1.1.4 Cost for gas provision month 24
1.1.5 Cost for fuel provision month 24
1.1.6 Cost for chemical provision month 24
1.1.7 Water analyses, laboratory month 24
1.1.8 Utilities and other costs month 24
1.1.9 Any other O&M item not described above, but deemed necessary to 

operate and maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.2 Variables costs (for 24 months)

1.2.1 Chemical consumption
1.2.1.1 Potassium permanganate tonnes
1.2.1.2 Aluminium slufate tonnes
1.2.1.3 Polyelectrolyte tonnes
1.2.1.4 Acid tonnes
1.2.1.5 NaOH tonnes
1.2.1.6 NaOCl tonnes
1.2.1.7 Other chemicals not described above, but deemed necessary to 

operate and maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:
1.2.2 Other consumables

1.2.2.1 Lubricants month 24
1.2.2.2 Laboratory reagents month 24
1.2.2.3 Laboratory Glasswere month 24
1.2.2.4 Activated carbon month 24
1.2.2.5 Other consumables month 24

1.2.3 Electricity power consumption
1.2.3.1 Electricity power consumption for the RWPS [3] kWh
1.2.3.2 Electricity power consumption for the WTP kWh
1.2.4 Gas power consumption Nm3
1.2.5 Fuel power consumption Liters
1.2.7 Utilities and other costs month 24

1.2.8 Any other O&M item not described above, but deemed necessary to 
operate and maintain the works. Tenderer to detail:

Notes:
[1]  Financial evaluation will be done based on theoretical raw water quality and water level at Mwache dam as mentioned in the Employer's requirements and answers to clarifications. Bidders shall provide details of calculation for variable costs consumption. 
[2] During the O&M period, Contractor shall be paid based on the actual chemical and electrical consumption
[3] Electrical consumption at the RWPS shall be calculated based on the following assumptions: 
- For 20% of the time: operation level of the dam of 50.0 masl
- For 50% of the time: operation Level of the dam of 70.0 masl
- For 30% of the time: operational level of the dam of 80.0 masl

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO THE GRAND SUMMARY (SCHEDULE No. 9)

Total price exc. VAT
in foreign Currency

[1]…............

Total price exc. VAT
in local Currency
[1]…..................

Sub-Total 

Item No Description Unit Qty

Unit price exc. VAT
in foreign Currency

[1]…..................

Unit price exc. VAT
in local Currency

KES



Schedule No. 9: Grand Summary

1 Preliminary Items

2
Equipment, Materials, Tools and Mandatory Spare Parts Supplied 
From Abroad

3
Equipment, Materials, Tools and mandatory Spare Parts supplied from 
within the Employer's country (Kenya)

4 Construction Works and Installation Services

5A
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Design and Build 
part

6 Security Cost

7 Dayworks

7A Labor

7B Materials

7C Contractor's Equipment

Sum of 
(1) to (7)

Sub-total 1

10% Contingencies (Provisional) (10% of Sub-total 1 above)

Sub-total 2 (for the Design-Build of the Works, to be also included in 
the Bid Submission Form - Bid Price): Sub-total 1 + Contingencies

5B Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) for Operation part

8 Operation Service 

Sub-total 3 for the Operation Service, to be also included in the Bid 
Submission Form - Bid Price (Sub-total 3 = 5B+8)
TOTAL (Sub-total 2 + Sub-total 3) to be also included in the Bid
Submission Form - Bid Price

[1] Specify currency in accordance with ITB 18.1 of the BDS.

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 

GRAND TOTAL (INCL. OF ALL TAXES)  

Value Added Tax (VAT) - 16%, to be also included in the Bid Submission Form - 
Bid Price

Schedule 
No.

Title
Amounts - exc. VAT

Local Currency 
KES

Foreign Currency 
[1]….................



Schedule No. 10: Provisional Sums

No. Item Description Unit Amount (Kshs.)

10,1 Provisional Sum for the Employer's share of the Dispute Board P.S Included in Firm Part

10,2 Provisional Sum for procurement of Vehicles for the Engineer / 
Employer

P.S Included in Firm Part

10,3 Provisional Sum for Operation and Maintenance of Vehicles for the 
Engineer / Employer including cost for fueling, insurance etc.

P.S           19 500 000,00 

10,4 Provisional Sum for Accommodation, Office Consumables / Expenses 
and Telephone for the Supervision Staff

P.S             9 000 000,00 

10,5 Provisional Sum for Inspection and Witness Testing of Pipes, Fittings, 
Valves and Other Equipment at manufacturer's premises

P.S
Included in Firm Part

10,6 Provisional Sum to cover costs of the Employer's Counterpart Staff 
assigned to the Project including transport, communication, allowances, 
etc.

P.S             6 000 000,00 

10,7 Provisional Sum to cover costs of Interns and Attachees assigned to the 
Project.

P.S
Included in Firm Part

10,8 Provisional Sum to be used as directed by the Employer / Engineer P.S Included in Firm Part

10,9 Provisional Sum to cover costs of On-site and Off-site Training of 
Employer's Staff 

P.S
Included in Firm Part

10,10 Provisional Sum to cover costs for procurement of specialised tools for 
Operation of the Treatment Plant and Raw Water Pumping Station

P.S
Included in Firm Part

10,10 Provisional Sum to cover costs for the electric connection line from the 
HV/MV electric Sub-station (within Dam Area) to the WTP and RWPS. 

P.S
Included in Firm Part

Sub-Total           34 500 000,00 

10,11 Tenderer's Overheads and Profits for Provisonal costs above 10%             3 450 000,00 

37 950 000,00         TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD TO SCHEDULE No. 1, ITEM 1.18

Price Schedules - CONDITIONAL  PART

Design, Build and Operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant
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Annex D - Revised Part 2, section 7.2, 3.15.3 



Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 

Section 7.2 – Design Requirements and Performances Specifications 

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 
Design, Build and operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant 
August 2024 64 

3.15.3.  Potable water system (other facilities within the Dam area) 

The scope of the potable water system for the base camp, police station and clinic is as follows: 

 Elevated 100m3 Reinforced Concrete Tank located within 3kms of the WTP.  Tank to be built at a height of 15m (at 
the highest elevation near the police station). 

 Pumping station within WTP (Q=12.0 m3/hr, static lift=approx. 35m, to be determined by the Contractor). Estimated 
pumping duration per day is 8-10 hours. 

 Treated water pumping mains – approx. 3.0 Km (exact length and diameters to be determined by Contractor) from 
WTP to elevated tank and from elevated tank to the base camp, police station, clinic and school. 

 Individual water connections (including water meters) to the base camp, police station, clinic and school.  

 Ancillary Works which includes interconnection to existing tanks (if any) at the base camp, police station, clinic and 
school (plumbing and connections within the premises are not included in the scope of works). 

  



Annex E - Mwache WTP – Topo 

(The map file in DWG format has been uploaded to the portal.)  



Annex F - Contractual boundaries coordinates 

 



RAW WATER PUMPING STATION COORDINATES

Station Range: Start: 0+000.00, End: 0+450.07

PI Station Northing Easting Distance Direction

0+000.00 9,558,814.3609m 558,099.0941m

54.193m S0° 30' 39"E

0+054.19 9,558,760.1702m 558,099.5772m

12.705m S38° 36' 45"W

0+066.90 9,558,750.2430m 558,091.6489m

22.894m S77° 35' 20"W

0+089.79 9,558,745.3224m 558,069.2896m

14.933m N61° 39' 31"W

0+104.72 9,558,752.4115m 558,056.1465m

44.614m N70° 17' 33"W

0+149.34 9,558,767.4560m 558,014.1459m

53.165m N43° 43' 48"W

0+202.50 9,558,805.8733m 557,977.3949m

25.876m N57° 32' 34"W

0+228.38 9,558,819.7601m 557,955.5611m

31.555m N47° 20' 28"W

0+259.93 9,558,841.1427m 557,932.3556m

24.000m N50° 42' 24"E

0+283.93 9,558,856.3418m 557,950.9296m

7.223m N73° 42' 06"E

0+291.16 9,558,858.3688m 557,957.8622m

30.081m S79° 34' 51"E

0+321.24 9,558,852.9287m 557,987.4474m

29.369m S81° 19' 54"E

0+350.61 9,558,848.5023m 558,016.4808m

8.000m N15° 11' 08"E

0+358.61 9,558,856.2230m 558,018.5764m

15.004m S78° 45' 28"E

0+373.61 9,558,853.2978m 558,033.2924m

76.459m S59° 23' 09"E

0+450.07 9,558,814.3609m 558,099.0941m

 WATER TREATMENT PLANT COORDINATES

Station Range: Start: 0+000.00, End: 1+842.44

PI Station Northing Easting Distance Direction



0+000.00 9,559,542.0278m 558,418.9833m

234.356m N35° 59' 06"E

0+234.36 9,559,731.6620m 558,556.6846m

141.519m N41° 30' 51"E

0+375.88 9,559,837.6309m 558,650.4843m

188.954m N47° 34' 40"E

0+564.83 9,559,965.0972m 558,789.9690m

112.517m N47° 07' 31"E

0+677.35 9,560,041.6534m 558,872.4262m

28.775m N38° 36' 21"E

0+706.12 9,560,064.1400m 558,890.3807m

58.533m N56° 50' 27"W

0+764.65 9,560,096.1556m 558,841.3796m

250.702m N56° 21' 23"W

1+015.36 9,560,235.0505m 558,632.6698m

354.846m S37° 53' 30"W

1+370.20 9,559,955.0151m 558,414.7341m

372.573m S12° 44' 42"W

1+742.78 9,559,591.6221m 558,332.5393m

99.660m S60° 09' 23"E

1+842.44 9,559,542.0278m 558,418.9833m

NOTE:

Local Datum Arc 1960

Ellipsoid Clarke 1880

Projection UTM



Northing Easting

9,558,814.3609m 558,099.0941m Northing Easting

9,558,760.1702m 558,099.5772m 9,559,542.0278m 558,418.9833m

9,558,750.2430m 558,091.6489m 9,559,731.6620m 558,556.6846m

9,558,745.3224m 558,069.2896m 9,559,837.6309m 558,650.4843m

9,558,752.4115m 558,056.1465m 9,559,965.0972m 558,789.9690m

9,558,767.4560m 558,014.1459m 9,560,041.6534m 558,872.4262m

9,558,805.8733m 557,977.3949m 9,560,064.1400m 558,890.3807m

9,558,819.7601m 557,955.5611m 9,560,096.1556m 558,841.3796m

9,558,841.1427m 557,932.3556m 9,560,235.0505m 558,632.6698m

9,558,856.3418m 557,950.9296m 9,559,955.0151m 558,414.7341m

9,558,858.3688m 557,957.8622m 9,559,591.6221m 558,332.5393m

9,558,852.9287m 557,987.4474m 9,559,542.0278m 558,418.9833m

9,558,848.5023m 558,016.4808m NOTE:

9,558,856.2230m 558,018.5764m Local Datum Arc 1960

9,558,853.2978m 558,033.2924m Ellipsoid Clarke 1880

9,558,814.3609m 558,099.0941m Projection UTM

 WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

BOUNDARY COORDINATES

RAW WATER PUMPING STATION 

BOUNDARY COORDINATES
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Annex H - Mwache Dam Power Line 
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Annex I - Mwache Raw Water Gravity Main 
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Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 

Section 7.2 – Design Requirements and Performances Specifications 

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA 
Design, Build and operate of MWACHE Water Treatment Plant 
August 2024 39 

3.5.6.2.  Chlorine disinfection 

After the UV treatment, addition of hypochlorite solution shall maintain a residual of chlorine, with an objective of 0.5 
mg/l, at the exit of the treated water reservoir. The hypochlorite solution shall be produced on the site by electro 
chlorination. 

The sizing of the electro chlorination shall be defined by the contractor to comply with objective of 0.5 mg/l as residual 
of chlorine. However, the minimal capacity of the equipment shall allow the average dosage of 1 mg/l of chlorine. For 
reliability reason the electro chlorination system shall comprise at least two electrolysers. 

In case the UV reactor is not working, the minimum chlorine dosage should be 2 mg/l. In this situation, injection of 
Calcium Hypochlorite solution shall complete the chlorination. Calcium Hypochlorite solution can also be used in case 
of maintenance or breakdown of the electro chlorination equipment. 

  



Annex K (1) - Revised PCC Part A 



Part 3 – Conditions of Contract 

Section 9 – Particular Conditions of Contract 
 

Conditions Sub-Clause Data 

  ✓ Specifying t h e   amount  payable  in  each  of  the 

applicable currencies under Sub-clause 13.4; 

✓ Acting under Sub-Clause 10.4; 

✓ Instruction   for   use   of   Provisional   Sums   under 

Sub-Clause 13.5. 

Performance Security: 4.2 The Performance Security will be in the form of a demand 

guarantee in the amount(s) of 10 percent of the Accepted 

Contract Amount for the Design Build and in the same 

currency(ies) of the Accepted Contract Amount. 

Reduction in Performance 

Security at the end of the 

Retention Period: 

4.2 50% 

Subcontractors: 4.4 Direct payment of Subcontractors is allowed 

Nominated Subcontractors 4.5 None 

Period for notification of 

errors, faults and other 

defects in the Employer's 

Requirements: 

5.1 90 days after the Commencement Date. 

Contractor's Documents 

requiring approval. 

5.2 In addition to the documents listed in the Employer's 

Requirements, the Contractor shall provide the following 

documents as part of the Contract: 
 

a) Shop  drawings  to  be  approved  by  the  Employer's 

Representative prior to starting the Works; 

b) As-built  drawings  to  be  approved  by  the  Employer's 

Representative prior to completion of the Works; and 
 

c) Operation and maintenance manuals. 

Normal working hours on the 

Site: 

6.5 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. from Monday to Friday 
 

8:00 a.m to 1:00 p.m on Saturdays 

Locally recognized days of 

rest 

6.5 Saturdays afternoon and Sundays 

Commencement date 8.1 The Commencement Date of the Firm Part shall be within 60 

days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance. 

The maximum time period for the Employer to notify the 

Conditional Part is: 365 days. 
 

The Conditional Part (if decided by the Employer) will be 

notified by a Commencement Order and the Employer is not 

bound to notify the Conditional Part. 
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Part 3 – Conditions of Contract 

Section 9 – Particular Conditions of Contract 

Part B – Specific Provisions 
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CLAUSE 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Sub-Clause 1.1 - Definitions 

Sub-Clause 1.1.1: Accepted 

Contract Amount 

Delete reference to "Asset Replacement Fund". 

Sub-Clause 1.1.2: Asset 

Replacement Fund 

This Sub-Clause is not applicable, to be deleted. 

Sub-Clause 1.1.3: Asset 

Replacement Schedule 

This Sub-Clause is not applicable, to be deleted. 

Sub-Clause 1.1.4: Auditing 

Body 

This Sub-Clause is not applicable, to be deleted. 

Sub-Clause 1.1.11: Contract 

Agreement 

Delete "(if any)" from the definition. 

Sub-Clause 1.1.21: Key 

Personnel 

The following is added at the end of the sub-clause: "Contractor’s Personnel 

includes Key Personnel as named in Part A - Contract Data." 

Sub-Clause 1.1.24: Cost Plus 

Profit 

Add the following new paragraph to the end of the Sub-Clause: 
 

"In these Conditions, provisions including the expression "Cost plus profit" 

require this profit to be one-twentieth (5%) of this Cost." 

Sub-Clause 1.1.27: DAB The whole Sub-Clause is replaced with: 
 

"DB means the person or three persons appointed under Sub-Clause 20.3 

[Appointment of the Dispute Board] or Sub-Clause 20.4 [Failure to Agree on 

the Composition of the Dispute Board] or Sub-Clause 20.10 [Disputes Arising 

under the Operation Service Period]". 

Sub-Clause 1.1.33: 

Employer's Equipment 

Delete "Employer's Requirements" and replace with "Particular Conditions of 

Contract". 

Sub-Clause 1.1.49: Letter of 

Tender 

Insert "or Letter of Bid" after "Letter of Tender". 

Sub-Clause 1.1.62: Plant Add to the end: "…including vehicles purchased for the Employer and relating 

to the construction or operation of the Works." 

Sub-Clause 1.1.66: Retention 

Period 

The following Sub-Clause is modified as follows: 
 

"Retention Period" means the period of 1 year after the date stated in the 

Commissioning Certificate. 

Sub-Clause 1.1.72: Site After "are to be executed", ", including storage and working areas," is added. 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.86: 
Ownership of the equipments 
that will be donated as 
specified in the social 
inclusion requirements 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 

"1.1.86 "The equipment listed in the ESHS Specifications for donation as per 
the social inclusion requirements shall be donated to the beneficiaries selected 
by the Contractor and confirmed in accordance with ESHS Specifications – 
Article 39.12.1. These equipment will be donated at the latest at the time 
Performance Certificate is issued by the Engineer, in exchange of a donation 
receipt signed by each targeted beneficiary;" 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.87: 

Accepted Contract Amount 

for the Design Build 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.87 "Accepted Contract Amount for the Design Build" means the 

amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the Design-Build 

of the Works;" 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.88: 

Accepted Contract Amount 

for the Operation Service 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.88  "Accepted Contract Amount for the Operation Service" means 

the amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the provision 

of the Operation Service;" 
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Part 3 – Conditions of Contract 

Section 9 – Particular Conditions of Contract 

 

 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.89: AFD The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.89 "AFD" means Agence Française de Développement, being 

specified that, according to French laws and regulations, AFD is not 

a bank but a Specialized Financial institution ("Institution Financière 

Spécialisée")". 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.90: EPP The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.90 "EPP" stands for stands for Environmental Protection Plan, and 

has the meaning defined in the ESHS Specifications." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.91: 

ESHS Specifications 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.91 "ESHS Specifications" means the document  entitled 

environmental, social, health and safety specifications, as included 

in the Employer's Requirements, and any additions and 

modifications to it in accordance with the Contract. Such document 

specifies the environmental, social, health and safety obligations of 

the Contractor." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.92: 

Existing Facilities 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.92 "Existing Facilities" means  the  existing  plant,  equipment, 

buildings and other assets at the Site to be taken oven and operated 

by the Contractor as further described in the Employer's 

Requirements." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.93: 

Influent 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.93 "Influent" means the untreated water/ wastewater entering the 

Works at the delivery point to the Works)." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.94: 

Influent Baseline 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.94 "Influent Baseline" means the quality characteristics of the 

untreated Influent as set out in the Employer's Requirements, used 

as the baseline for the design of the Works;" 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.95: 

Performance Guarantees 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.95   "Performance Guarantees" means the standards to be achieved 

by the Contractor during the Operation Service Period and includes 

the standards specified in the Schedule of Performance 

Guarantees." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.96: 

Project Area 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.96 "Project   Area"   has   the   meaning   defined   in   the   ESHS 

Specifications." 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.97: 

Schedule of Performance 

Guarantees 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.97  "Schedule of Performance Guarantees" means the schedule set 

out in Appendix 2 to the Contract Agreement specifying the core 

Performance Guarantees to be met by the Works and achieved by 

the Contractor at commissioning and throughout the whole 

Operation Service Period;" 

New Sub-Clause 1.1.98: 

Worksite - ESMP 

The following is added as a new Sub-Clause: 
 

"1.1.98 "Worksite - ESMP" stands for Worksite Environmental and Social 

Management Plan, and has the meaning defined in the ESHS 

Specifications." 

Sub-Clause 1.2: Interpretation The following is added at the beginning of the Sub-Clause: 
 

"Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any 

trade term and the rights and obligations of the Parties thereunder shall be 

prescribed by Incoterms. Incoterms means international rules for interpreting 
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Part 3 – Conditions of Contract 

Section 9 – Particular Conditions of Contract 
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CLAUSE 8: COMMENCEMENT DATE, COMPLETION AND PROGRAMME 

Sub-Clause 8.1: 

Commencement Date 

Delete the text of the whole Sub-Clause and replace with the following: 

"Except as otherwise specified in the Contract, the Commencement Date shall 

be the date at which the following conditions precedent have all been fulfilled 

and the Employer’s Representative's notification recording the agreement of 

both Parties on such fulfilment and instructing to commence the Work is received 

by the Contractor: 

(a) signature of the Contract Agreement by both Parties, and if required, 

approval of the Contract by relevant authorities of the Country; 

(b) effective access to and possession of the Site given to the Contractor 

together with such permission(s) under (a) of Sub-Clause 1.14 

[Compliance with Laws] as required for the commencement of the Works. 

(c) Receipt by the Contractor of the Advance Payment under Sub-Clause 14.2 

provided that the corresponding bank guarantee has been delivered by the 

Contractor. 

If the said Employer’s Representative’s notification is not received by the 

Contractor within 180 days from his receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the 

Contractor shall be entitled to terminate the Contract under Sub-Clause 16.2 

[Termination by Contractor], unless the Contractor has caused, or contributed in 

any respect to, any non-fulfilment of one or all of these conditions precedent. 
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Part 2 – Employer’s Requirements 

Section 7.2 – Design Requirements and Performances Specifications 
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1.3.2.  Treatment capacity 

The Water Treatment Plant shall be designed for a minimum daily treated water capacity of 93,000 m3/day for Firm Part 
and 93,000 m3/day for Conditional Part. The total capacity of the Water Treatment Plant shall be a minimum of 186,000 
m3/day.  
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